Quality Community — Quality Schools

Rockford Public Schools
&7

Together Building a Tradition of Excellence

ROCKFORD BOARD OF EDUCATION
July 15,2024 - 5:30 PM
Agenda

CALL TO ORDER
MOMENT OF SILENCE/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

APPROVAL OF AGENDA
RECOGNITION

1.

Recognition of the Administrators Choice Art Award

ACTION ITEMS - CONSENT AGENDA

2.

AU Y

Approval of Minutes from the June 24, 2024 special meeting
Certified Staff Resignation

Presentation of bills in the amount of $14,581,543.01
2024-2025 School Board Meeting Dates

2024-2025 Continuity of Learning plan

CONSENT GROUPING (ORGANIZATION)

1.

2.

6.

Banking Approvals — Depository for School Funds/Savings and Checking Accounts and
Signatures Fund/Savings
Fidelity Bond — A Fidelity bond is required by the General School Law (380.243) for the
Treasurer of the Board of Education and the person serving as the Executive Director of
Business and Operations. The amounts are not specified, but in the past, you have placed the
following amounts:
Treasurer - $10,000
Executive Director of Business and Operations - $20,000
Appointment of Legal Counsel for the 2024-2025 School Year
Superintendent Matthews will recommend the Board of Education continue to engage
Thrun Law Firm, PC to serve as district legal counsel. When matters may occasionally
dictate, the Administration is requesting the Board’s permission to use an alternate
appropriate local firm.
Appointment of School Auditors for the 2023-2024 School Year Audit
Superintendent Matthews will recommend that the Board of Education appoint
Hungerford as school auditors for the previous fiscal year.
Appointment of Sex Education Advisory Board Co-Chairs
Superintendent Matthews will recommend the appointment of two co-chairs to the
district’s Sex Education Board
2024-2025 Continuity of Learning plan

CLOSED SESSION — WATER AND SANITARY SEWER

1.

The Board of Education will vote on entering a closed session to discuss the Water and
Sanitary Sewage Resolution

NEW BUSINESS

Nh W=

REPORTS

1.

Water and Sanitary Sewage Resolution
Reimbursement Resolution

Policy — First Reading

Certified Staff New Hires

Summer Tax Resolution

Committee Reports

RECOGNITION OF VISITORS AND HEARING OF PEOPLE PRESENT
SUPERINTENDENT REMARKS



ADJOURNMENT

Accommodations:

Any person with a disability who needs accommodation for participation in these meetings
should contact the Superintendent’s Office at 616.863.6557, at least five days in advance of the
meeting.



Rockford Public Schools BOARD OF EDUCATION

Quality Community — Quality Schools
Together Building a Tradition of Excellence

Meeting Minutes - Regular Meeting

June 10, 2024

Date 1 time Monday-June 10, 2024 1 5:30 p.m.

Location Administration Boardroom
Meeting called to order with a moment of silence and the Pledge of Allegiance by President Folsom

In Attendance

Board of Education: Tricia Anderson, Kelley Freridge, Barbara Helms, Jarrod Folsom, Christie Ramsey, Nick
Reichenbach

Regrets: Jake Himmelspach

Administration: Dr. Steve Matthews, Mike Ramm, Allison Clements, Dr. Korie Wilson-Crawford, Lisa
Jacobs, Jodi Nester.

Adoption of Agenda

Motion to approve agenda by Christie Ramsey with support by Kelley Freridge. Motion passed unanimously.

Recognition

There was a presentation and certificates were handed out honoring the Examples in Excellence winners.

Consent Agenda

Motion to approve by Nidk Reichenbach with support by Kelley Freridge. The motion passed unanimously.

Approval of Minutes from the May 13, 2024 meeting
Presentation of bills in the amount of $11,467,771.35
Certified staff resignations

Athletic Golf Cart Purchase

=

New Business

1. MHSAA Resolution

The Board of Education was presented with a resolution from the MHSAA for the 2024-2025 school
year. Motion to approve by Nick Reichenbach with support by Tricia Anderson. Motion passed
unanimously with a roll call vote.

2. Administrator Contract Renewals

Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources, Korie Wilson-Crawford explained that the RPS
Administrators are on a rolling 2- or 3-year contract based on position. The motion to approve
contract renewals as presented by Kelley Freridge with support by Christie Ramsey. Motion passed
unanimously.



3. Superintendent Compensation

Dr. Matthews explained that his contract had been updated. Motion to approve the updated rolling
contract was approved by Kelley Freridge with support by Christie Ramsey. Motion passed
unanimously.

4. Spring Policy - Second Reading

Dr. Wilson-Crawford explained the changes suggested by NEOLA. The policy changes were previously
brought to the board for a first reading at the May Board Meeting. Motion to approve by Tricia
Anderson with support by Christie Ramsey. Motion passed unanimously.

Reports

1. RAMS XII Report

Dr. Matthews, Dr. Wilson Crawford, Mike Ramm and Lisa Jacobs gave a RAMS Xll update to the Board
of Education.

Recognition of Visitors & Hearing of People Present

The following individuals addressed the Board of Education.
Brenda Wodarski
Charles Curtis

Andrea Jacobsen

Superintendent Remarks

Dr. Matthews talked about an on-going lawsuit against the district. He also praised the district for the
continued support of students and learning.

Adjournment

President Folsom adjourned the meeting at 6:49 p.m.

Recording Secretary Secretary, Board of Education



Rockford Public Schools BOARD OF EDUCATION

Quality Community — Quality Schools
Together Building a Tradition of Excellence

Meeting Minutes — Special Meeting

June 24, 2024

Date | time Monday-June 24, 2024 1 5:30 p.m.

Location Administration Boardroom
Meeting called to order with a moment of silence and the Pledge of Allegiance by President Folsom

In Attendance

Board of Education: Tricia Anderson, Kelley Freridge, Barbara Helms, Jarrod Folsom, Christie Ramsey, Nick
Reichenbach

Regrets: Tricia Anderson

Administration: Dr. Steve Matthews, Mike Ramm, Allison Clements, Dr. Korie Wilson-Crawford, Jodi
Nester.

Adoption of Agenda

Motion to approve agenda by Christie Ramsey with support by Jake Himmelspach. Motion passed unanimously.

Budget Hearing

1. Executive Director of Business and Operations Allison Clements gave a budget
hearing presentation. No action is necessary. There were no requests to address the
Board of Education.

Consent Agenda

Motion to approve by Kelley Freridge with support from Nick Reichenbach. Motion passed unanimously.

1. Certified staff resignations

New Business

1. Bargaining Agreements

Dr. Wilson-Crawford presented the Board with the agreements reached by both RESPA and REA.
RESPA motion to approve by Jake Himmelspach with support by Christie Ramsey. Motion passed
unanimously. REA motion to approve by Kelley Freridge with support by Nick Reichenbach. Motion
passed unanimously.

2. Food Service Van Purchase

Executive Director of Business and Operations Allison Clements presented a proposal to the board
regarding a Van purchase for Food Services. Motion to approve by Kelley Freridge with support by
Christie Ramsey. Motion passed unanimously.



Reports

2023-2024 Budget Amendments
Allison Clements presented the budget amendments to the Board of Education for
approval.

General Fund (including athletics) — Motion to approve by Christie Ramsey with support by Barbara
Helms. Motion passed unanimously by roll call vote.

Food Service — Motion to approve by Kelley Freridge with support by Christie Ramsey. Motion passed
unanimously by roll call vote.

Activity Fund — Motion to approve by Nick Reichenbach with support by Jake Himmelspach. Motion
passed unanimously.

Public Trust Fund — Motion to approval by Kelley Freridge with support by Christie Ramsey. Motion
passed unanimously by roll call vote.

2024-2025 Budget Proposals

General Fund (including athletics) — Motion to approve by Jake Himmelspach with support by Christie
Ramsey. Motion passed unanimously by roll call vote.

Food Service — Motion to approve by Christie Ramsey with support by Nick Reichenbach. Motion
passed unanimously by roll call vote.

Debt Fund — Motion to pass by Jake Himmelspach with support by Kelley Freridge. Motion pass
unanimously by roll call vote.

Activity Fund — Motion to approve by Nick Reichenbach with support by Barb Helms. Motion passed
unanimously.

Public Trust Fund — Motion to approval by Christie Ramsey with support by Barb Helms. Motion
passed unanimously by roll call vote.
2024 Tax Leavy Certification

Motion to approve by Kelley Freridge with support by Nick Reichenbach. Motion passed unanimously.

Committee Reports

The Finance Committee did meet this month, but everything discussed was covered tonight in New
Business.

Recognition of Visitors & Hearing of People Present

There were no requests to address the Board of Education.

Superintendent Remarks

Dr. Matthews thanked the business department for the hard work on the budgets. He also thanked REA
and RESPA along with Dr. Wilson-Crawford and Ms. Clements for the collaborative mindset.

Adjournment

President Folsom adjourned the meeting at 6:36 p.m.

Recording Secretary Secretary, Board of Education



. : : Dr. Korie Wilson-Crawford, Assistant Superintendent
Quality Community — Quality Schools 350 N. Main Street - Rockford, MI 49341
= Together Building a Tradition of Excellence Phone: 616.863.6554 - Fax: 616.863.6355

OCkford PUbIlC SChOOlS Human Resources Department
&7

Memorandum
To: Board of Education
From: Dr. Korie Wilson-Crawford, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources

Date: July 15, 2024
Subject: 2024-2025 Employee Resignation

Ryan Beuschel Teacher Valley View Elementary 06/21/2024

www.rockfordschools.org



BOARD REPORT ON DISBURSEMENTS

DATE:  6/3/2024

7/8/2024

6,102,927.78

3,782,698.15

132,678.26

0.00

PAYROLL

GENERAL FUND NET PAYROLL 25,26, 1 4,365,033.89
FOOD SERVICE 25, 26, 1 49,390.63
ATHLETIC FUND 25, 26, 1 35,463.00
TOTAL ALL FUNDS 25, 26, 1 4,449,887.52
ALL FUNDS:

FEDERAL TAX $ 475,872.35
SOCIAL SECURITY TAX-MEDICARE TAX $ 956,741.80
STATE TAX $ 220,426.11
TOTAL $ 1,653,040.26
BLUE CROSS INSURANCE $ 38,152.15
NVA/NATIONAL VISION $

ADN ADMIN(DENTAL) ADMIN FEES $ 6,056.00
MESSA (VSP/MED/ LIFE) $ 854,088.05
NATIONAL INSURANCE SVCS(L TERM DISABILITY $ 14,741.40
RETIREMENT PAYROLL $ 2,869,660.55
UTILITIES:

DTE ENERGY 7,112.64
CONSUMERS ENERGY $ 117,816.18
BP ENERGY (FORMERLY EDF ENERGY) BULK FUE$ 7,749.44
BAL ON GEN FUND CREDIT CARD # $

KENT ISD-ITINERANTS 821,045.57
KENT ISD-TRANPORTATION 126,385.87

TOTAL OF ABOVE
BALANCE OF TOTAL GENERAL FUND

SINKING FUND REG CKS
SINKING FUND ACH CKS
SINKING FUND CREDIT CARD
2023 BOND REG CKS

2023 BOND ACH CKS

2023 BOND CREDIT CARD
GENERAL FUND ACH CKS
GENERAL FUND CREDIT CARD
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS

947,431.44

. 10,965735.63
945,846.29

0.00

0.00

0.00
1,702,916.34
0.00
10,666.92
70,000.00
886,377.83




Quality Community — Quality Schools

Rockford Public Schools
&7

Together Building a Tradition of Excellence

August 12, 2024
September 9, 2024
October 14, 2024
November 11, 2024
December 9, 2024
January 13, 2025
February 10, 2025
March 10, 2025
April 21, 2025

May 12, 2025

June 9, 2025

July 14, 2025

2024 — 2025 Board Meeting Dates




"SOI}3|Y}E IO ‘SWI00ISSE[O ‘S|00yds Ul s)ealqino 6L-ajAQD 40 suoienys ul Aidde jou op sjaAs| ay L
"ybiy pue ‘wnipaw ‘Moj jo s|eAaT AJunwwio) 6L-aIAOD DA 8y} Joy sainseaw sauino ueld Buimojjo} syl

‘SI9p.Io/sojepuewW [eiopay pue ‘dje}s ‘[edaoj jje pue Aue ypm Ajdwoo jjim 3aLpsip ay
‘JJe)s pue sjuspnis
10 Alajes pue yjeay ay} Bulinsua Ajsnosueynulis ajiym sjuswiuodiaua Buiules| jewnydo Jsysoy 0} Juswajdwi 0y saibajels uonebiyiw
JO Jaquinu sy} sulwalep |Im ‘Alessadau se GHANIN PUe SSHAW ‘AHOM UHM UOIEYNSUOD Ul ‘S|ooydS dljdnd PJopiooy ‘00 aui
Aq paulwisiap se ‘|an9] 61L-AIAOD AHunwwod 8y} uo pasegq ‘AJunod ay} o} [9As] AHunwiwod §1L-AIAQD U} SuIwISlap |[IM DAD YL

dejN VeIS SfeS TN !
~S|ooy0g Ul SeseasIq m_pmo_csEEoo Buibeuep, SHHAIN PUE AN -Siuswnooq Buipoddng

Aiessoaoou pawsap jI ‘poja|dwod aq Jim sejepdn

pue pamairad aq [im uejd sy quelb ay} Jo 8l 8y} buunp syuow xis AioAs uey) alow jou Inq ‘Ajjeoipolad ‘saibajels uoiebiiw

0] sjuswijsnipe axew o] Buipjing 40 JoL}SIP 8y} MOojje 0} papaau 8q Aew awiy uonisuel) £iessadsu aie sabueyd yons J| "S)}eaiqino
pue Ajroe 6 L-gINOD J00yds-ul Uo paseq Aiea o) pasu ose Aew uejd 8y ‘8SeaJoul Yjeap JO ‘Suoljeziie)idsoy ‘esessip 81oA8S

JO SYSlI 8yj JI 10 sjueLieA [enjusjod pue jua.ind buipunolins sabueyo abpajmouy se aAjoAd pue abueyd Aew ueld siy | :8)ON osed|d

"90JN0Ssal S|00YOS Ul saseasIq ajgediunwwo) Buibeuely, saoIAI9S UewNH pue yjjesH o juswpuedaq uebiyoip/uoneonpg

JO Wswuedaq uebiysipy ayl epnjoul sjuswnoop Buiuoddns jeuonippy “uejd JuswuoliAue Bulules| pue |00Yds 0} Uinjal ajes pue
[N}SS200NS B Sey JouisIp |00Y9s N0 Jey) ainsus 0} (QHOM) uswuedaq yjesH Ajuno) juay| ay} wols aouepinb Buisn padojonsp sem
ueld siyl “Aluno) juay Ul yeys pue syuapnss Joj Alojes pue yjeay ay} Bulinsua Ajsnosuejnuis ajiym sjuawiuolinua Buiuses| [lewydo
sJ2)s0} Jey) Aem e ul pajuswajdwi ale sainseaw uonebijiw pue uonuanald §L-QIAOD ey} ainsua 0} aosuepinb pajielep sapinoid ue|d
uJea 0} uinyey #2-£20z au) Jeak jooyos Buiwoodn sy} Buunp Ajayes pue Ajjuslsisuod yjoq uaddey ued siy} jeyj buunsug -sjuspnis
0} Wjauaq 1sajealb ayy sepinoid yoiym Bulules| pue Buiyoes) uositad-ul ‘[|ny azijiold 03 SnuRUOD [|IM SJO0YIS 21jgnd PI0N00Y

¥20¢2-€20¢c
ue|d S92IAI8S JO AJINUIUOYH puk uleaT 0} Uin}ay

S|00Y9S 2ljqnd PIOH90Y



Bunsa] 61L-AINOD

"SWI00JSSE[O Ul pajuswajdul

aq Aew sainpaoo.d Bujosyuisip pue
Bulues|o |euoiippy “sainpaosoid uoosjuISIp
pue Buiues|d Jejnbas Mo||0} |[IM JOLISIP YL

"saInpaooud uonosuISIp
pue Buiues|o Jejnbas Mo||0} |[IM JOLISIP YL

"sainpaooud uonosuIsIp
pue Buiues|o Jejnbas Moj||oy |[IM JOLISIP YL

Bunoajuisiq pue Buiues|)

"Pamo|o}
aq |m saulapinb wySHIN —edeyd ojul nd
aq Aew sjooojoid Ayojes jeuonippy "papiwiad
aq |IIm suonnadwod pue saonoeld ons|yly

"PaMo||0}
aq ||I!M saullepinG YySHIN peniwied
aq |Im suoniedwod pue saonjoeld ane|ylyY

"Pamo]|o} a9 ||Im sauljapinb

VYVSHIN “paniwied
aq |IIm suoiiredwod pue sadnoeld ondUIY

sana|yIY

‘pealds |00yos-Ul [0J3U0D

0} pue s)eaIgino 0} anp juswyuedsp yjesy ay}
Aq palinbai JI uononisul sjowal o} Ajelodws)
panow aq Aew sbuipjing Jo ‘sepelb ‘sasselo
BWOS }Ng ‘INJ00 ||IM UOI}oNJISUl uosiad-u|

“INOD0 [[IM UOlONJSUI Uosiad-Uu|

“INOD0 [[IM UolONJSUI uosiad-uj

jew.io4 [euononsuj

wnipapy

:sa1bajesys uonebijiN/uoipuUdALd POPUIWILLIOIDY

wnipsjy




aupuelenp pue uoie|osj

‘Aep ayj ynoybnouy) sjgejiene

aq |m Buiysem puey Jadoud Joy saiiunuoddo
|[euonippe pue pajoadxa ale apenbi3
AKiojelidsay pue uonejues pueH/euaibAH pueH

‘pa1oadxas alte ayanbig Alojesidsey
pue uonjejues pueH/aualbAH pueH

‘pajoadxs ate ayanbng Alojesidsey
pue uonejues pueH/aualbAH pueH

apanbig Aiojesidsay pue aualbAH pueH

‘pajoLisal 8q Aew sai|ioe) Jo asn
Kousbe sapisinO “pajuswajdwi aq Aew sanijioey)
10 asn Jo/pue azis Buliayieb uo suonousay

‘sel|ioe)}
Jo asn Jo sbuusyieb uo suonoLsal oN

‘seljl|ioe)
Jo asn Jo sbuusyieb uo suonoLsal oN

asn Aj1oe4 pue buuayjeo

"aHO Agq palinbal se aoe|d ui ind
aq ||im sjoo0joud Aajes pue yiesy [euonippy
"IN200 ||IM Suolelado 92IAI8S POO) |BWION

"IND00 [|IM Suonesado 92IAI8S POO) [BWION

"INO00 [|IM Suoljesado 92IAI8SPO0) [EWION

991A19g pOO4

"0do Jo/pue ‘SHHAI ‘AHANIN @y} Aq paiinbal
usym sysew alinbai 0} 8sooyo Aew syoL}sIq

"SJ98JUNJOA 1O ‘SIOJSIA ‘Jels ‘sjuspnis
10} palinbai jou ale sbulienoo aoe

"SJ98JUN|OA 1O ‘SIO)ISIA ‘Jels ‘sjuspnis
Jo} palinbal jou aie sbulienod aoe

(s)se) sburianon aoe4

"paIBpISU0D
aq Aew sduy pjal} pue SaijIAIJO. JB|NOLLINJBIIXS
JO uoisuadsns pue s|essiwsIp Wis}-loys

"pa|npayos
Se Ino00 AeW SaI}IAIOE JBjNDLINORIIXT

‘panpayos
Se IN200 ABW SaN)IAOR Je[NoLINO.IIXT

sdii] pjel4 pue Jejnouunoel)x3y

"sal[iwey 0} palayo ag Aew jng paJinbai aq jou |im Bunsal




ssau||| Juspn}s

"UOI}08S SSaU||l JUspNIS 8y} 88S

"MOIS FHV AFHL 41 TOOHOS OL SLIN3IANLS AN3S LON Od
‘looyos 03 sjuspnis Buipuas o} Joud }oayo ssaujjem Juspnis Ajiep e 1onpuod pjnoys sueipienb/sjusied

Buiuaalog yjeaH

‘syjuswalinbal Buioue)sip |e100s ay} 03 isnlpe

0} apew aq Aew *0)o ‘SaINIAIOE ‘S9INPaYds
‘sainpadold jooyos 0} sjuawisnipy aoe(d ui nd
g Aew sainsesw Bulouessip [e100s ajgisesa]

‘paJinbal
J0U ale sainseaw Buiouelsip |e100S

‘paJinbal
J0U ale sainseaw Buioue)sip |e100S

Buiouelsiq je120s

"2Ins0|0 8y} 3noybnouy} saiiunuoddo Buiuies)
[enuiA/a10wWal papinodd aq Aew ainso|o ayy Aq pajoedwl sjuspnis |8 ‘Paso|o SI [00YDS JO WOOISSE|D B J| '|00YdS JO WOo0ISSeD B o Buisolo
ay) salinbas SHHAIN 10 QHOY Wo.y JapJo ue Ji uoido siyy Aojdws ued jousip 8y "uoido; Buluies| |enuin/ajowal B 9ABY SS0P JOUISIP 8y L

Buluiea jenyip/o)}oWDY

‘PayWI =9

Aew sysanb pue siojisip -ajelidoidde pswesp
se aoe|d ul Ind aq Aew sjooojoud Ayojes

pue yjjeay |Buoiippy "SSauIsng |[O0Y9S [ew.ou
Joj uado aq ||Im sa21yo Buip|ing pue 1ouIsIg

‘Aoljod

101s1p Jad sbuipjing ul pamojje ale sisanb
puB SIOJSIA "SSaUISNg [00YDS [BULIOU 1O}
uado aq |Im saa1yo Buipjing pue 10L3sIg

“Aoljod

1ou3sip Jad sbuipjing ui pamojje ale sjsanb
pue SIOJSIA "SSaUISNg [00YDS [BWIOU 10}
uado aq |Im s821yo Buipjing pue 1oL3sIg

S991J0

"QHO @Y} JO Suswiaiinbas MO0} [|IM JoLIsId BY L




¥2//9 perepdn

uosJad ul pue jeuonesado Ajpjes

suods pue ‘saljiAljoe Je[noLIndelxa ‘sjooyds desy se [|am se olwapued 6L-QIAOD 9yl pud 0} ABsjens uonuanaid yjeay oignd Buipes)
By} Se UOIBUIDIBA §L-Q]AQD PUsWWOo9al DJD PuUB ‘SHHAIN ‘QHOM 2UL "paleulddeA aq 0} sjuspnis 1o yeys buuinbau jou sijouasip ayl

suoieulddep

aq Aew sjooojoid Alojes pue yjjesy |euoiippy

‘ajelidoisdde pswesp se aoe|d ul ind
*IN220
JIlm suonelado uoneuodsuel) [eWION

*IND20 [[IM

"IN220 ||IM suoljesado uoneyodsuel) [BWION suonelado uoneuodsuel) [BWION

uonejodsues)

[loWS JO 8]Se) JO SSO| MBN
paJanod aq Jouue9 jey} salos us Bulespp

Jans) ypm ysey

uled jeuiwopqy

(sj003s A1eyem Jo 8s00] aiow J0 oMm}) eayllelq

(sewi} aiow J0 om})BunILLOA

(ssaupaun) anbie4

seyoepesH

sayoe Apoq Jo 9josnip

(uonsabuoo) asou Aynis Jo Auuny

}eouy} alos

yieauq jo ssaupoys ‘ybnon

S|I1Iy9/ysuanay buijasy Jo (4001 1ono dwa}) Jana4

(Buiyyeaiq Aynoigip sey ‘aaisuodsal ss9| 1o 2164ey3a|) ||l Ajo1onas e

(4ad’2 ¥2869¥ 1VNIH S|ooyds™ui- g9~ buibeuey/yopw/sjuaunoop/Aob: uebiyoiummm//:sdpy

® 6 6 6 o6 o o o o o o o o

99s) "ssau||l JIay} Jo} pajedIpul SB 10 UOIIBdIpaW JO PIE 8y} JNOYNIM SIN0Y g 10} 88.)-WojdWAS S juspnis 8y} [I3un [00YdS WO} PapNjoxa
10 BWOY ulewal ||eys ssauj|l 91uoIyd Aue Jo sul|aSeq JIay) WOoI) 9SIOMAUSIaLIP 10 Mau aJe Jeyl swoldwAs Buimojjoy sy Buiigiyxs siuspnig
"s@seas|( 9|gediunwiwo) 10BIU0Y [BNSEY JO [04IU0D - 0G78 Od Jad ||l @le oym [o0YDS 0] Ualp|iyd puss 0] Jou ale suelpiency/siuaied




Rockford Public Schools

Quality Community — Quality Schools
Together Building a Tradition of Excellence

To: Dr. Steve Matthews, Superintendent of Schools
From: Allison Clements, Executive Director of Business and Operations

Date: July 9, 2024
Subject: Banking Accounts/ Approval

Finance Department

Allison Clements, Executive Director
of Business and Operations

350 N. Main Street (*) Rockford, MI 49341
Phone: 616.863.6555 (*) Fax: 616.866.1911

Attached is a list of depositories and signing officials for school funds (savings and checking accounts).

| recommend this be presented to the Board of Education for approval on July 15, 2024.

ATC/jg

Attachment

www.rockfordschools.org



elgnyer Wiy  sjuswa|D uoslly ‘smaune UsAllS | [692S+6E9LL suonoesuel | Ajre@ sueg payL yuid

uewAdeig Apues ‘ussueyor aueiq ‘Yelgqnyer wiy| syuswsl uosiy ‘SMaype usasis 581122 JuBW}SOAU| HVTIN

ALIALLDY -19 ANNA

elgnyer wiy|  sjuswa|) oSl ‘SMauNe Uanals  |6€1206891 .2 suonoesuel | Ajle@ sueg payL yyid

uewAeig Apues ‘yeigner wiy| sjusWa|) UOSI|Y ‘smayne usasls| | 1¥0g0Z JussaAU| VN

ANNd ONIINIS - 9% ANNd

uewAeig Apues Sfeignyer wiy| SjusWs|D UOSI|Y ‘SMaUNBN UsARIS | [¥0.£02 JuSWISaAUY| AVIN

AdNNd LINJINIAOHUdINI TVI1IdVO - LY ANNd

‘pisikg a1nr ‘ussueyor suelq ‘uewAelq Apueg yeignyer wiy| S)USWSID UOSI|Y ‘SMAUNE| USAS)S  [09EErER9LL suooesuel] Ajieq ueg payL yyld
uewAeig Apues Sfeignyer wiy| SjUSWS|D UOSI|Y ‘SMaUNBIN USAS)S | [GESE0Z JUBWISBAUY| AVIN

dNNd S103roydd 1v.iidvO €202 - ¥ ANNd

Yelqanser wry SJUSWID US| ‘SMOUNEIN UBASYS | |/1/0689LL suonoesuel] Ajreq yueg payL Yo

uewAelg Apues ‘Yeignyer wiy SjUBWS|D UOSI||Y ‘SMBUNE| USAS)S 0¥0£02 JusW)SaAU| AVTIN

aNN4d S1203rodd 1v.1idvO 6102 - S ANN4d

SEIgner Wiy SjUBWBID UOSI(IY ‘SMUNEIN USASIS 9681078912 suonoesuel ] Alleq yueg piyL yuid

uewAeig Apues eignyer wiy SjuBWIB|D UOSI||Y ‘SMaURE|\ UsASIS 102102 JuBWISOAU| AVIIN

SOIL3THLY - LZ ANN4

Selgnier Wiy SIUSWSID UOSIIY ‘SMOUNEIN USASIS 0€Lyy6E9LL suonoesuel] Ajleg jueg paiyl yyl4

S0IAISS PO Yelqnyer Wiy SJUBWISID US| ‘SMOUNEIN UsARlS|  [80Z1L0Z JuBUISaAY| AVIIN

JOIAY3S dOO04d - 52 ANNnd

uewAelg Apues eignyer wiy SIUBWISI] UOSI||Y ‘SMaUNelN usASiS 689€0¢C ¥20c ANN4 1930 AVIIN
uewAeig Apues eigner wiy SJUSWISID UOSI|IY ‘SMOUNBIN USASIS 16€£€0C ¢¢0c ANN4 193a AVIIN
uewAelg Apues eignyer wiy SIUBWISI] UOSI||Y ‘SMaUNelN usASiS L¥0€0C 610c ANN4 1930 AVIIN
uewAeig Apues Seignser wiy SUSWISID UOSI|IY ‘SMaUYIBN USASIS 60.420C 9q910¢ ANN4 193a AVIIN
uewAelg Apues eignyer wiy SIUBWISI] UOSI||Y ‘SMaUNelN UsASlS G.9¢0¢ 910c ANN4 1930 AVIIN

14934 - s.0€ dNNd

ueespuep uoser

‘sqooer esI ‘|lomxe|N Sy ‘||uyo0D esslls SJUBWS|D UOSI||Y ‘SMOUHE|N USASIS 8-099-888000.¢C (SAS Wwiwo) 3O 1saudw jueg eseyn
Yelgnyer wiy SJUBWS|D UOSI|IY ‘SMUNEIN USASIS 6€L9¥6€91L sjwhed aull-uQ sooWWo) 3 jueg payL yui4
uewAeig Apueg ‘Yeignyer wry SJUSW|D UOSI||Y ‘SMAUNEIN USASIS 2.v202 sjwAed aul-uQ a2Jawwo) 3 QoJaWwwWoD-3 4V 1IN
uewfe.g Apues SJUBWS|D UOSI|lY ‘SMOUHE|N USASIS 90€Z125000 (SAS WWo) MO/pieD JpaId ueq juspuadapul
s|Ag aine ‘Jaysipopy wed
‘abpuboly wed ‘uewAelg Apues ‘ussueyor suelq ‘Yeigqnyer wiy SJUBWS|D US|l ‘SMAUJIBIN USASIS YGZYY6E9L . suonoesuel] Ajleq Mueg payl Yyl
uewAheig Apues
‘ISYsIPOl Wed ‘Neignser wiy ‘ebpLBo wed ‘|leqdwe) wed SJUSWI|D UOSI|lY ‘SMOUNEIN USASIS 90t20C lloihed AVIIN
uewAe.g Apueg ‘uasueyor aueiq ‘Yelgqnyer wiy SJUBWISID UOSI||Y ‘SMAUNEIN USAS]S 81122 Buiyosy DU WISaAU| VN
Bis|Ag ainr ‘uewAelg Apues
‘19USIPOI Wed ‘elanser wiy ‘obpLboly wed ‘|leqdwe) wed SIUSWISJD UOSI||Y ‘SMAUNEIN USASIS 11988991 L junodoe HOY ||ohed jueg payL yui4
MS|Ag aynr ‘uasueyor aueiq ‘uewAelg Apues
‘IaysIpol Wed Seiqnyer wiy ‘ebpuboy wed ‘[leqdwe) wed SJUSWIBJD UOSI||Y ‘SMOUNEIN USASIS Yiv.Lv6E91LL lloiAed jueg payL yui4

IVY3INIO - L1 ANNd

:$TVIOI440 ONINOIS TVNOLLIdav *§7VIOI440 ONINOIS # LNNODJV NOILdINOS3d MNvE/aNN4d

I
ST0T ‘0€ ANNL ONIANT YVAA O SINNODDV INVE 40 LSI'T AAVINIANS STOOHODS D1'TdNd HOAD0H




"£20Z Jaquiada( Ul Juswialljal Jay 0} anp SJUNOJDE ||B WOJ) paAowal buiaq jo ssaeooid ay) Ul si Iys|Ag alnr,

"pZ0Z ‘§Z |uNnf UO Juswalljal Jay 0} anp SJUNOJDE. ||e WoJ) panowal Bureq Jo sseoo0id ay) ul s| uewAelg Apues,

elgnyer wiy[  sjuswal) uosily ‘smaunep uenals|  [20zSr6E9LL suonoesuel | Ajie@ sueg payL yuid

uewAeug Apues Sfeignyer wiy| SJUSWS|D UOSIY ‘SMaUNEN USAS)S | |98L1ee JusWISaAU| VN

dIHSYVYTOHOS -1S ANN4




ockford Public Schools Instruction Department
&2

Oy COmmITTE Oty Sohanis Mike Ramm, Assistant Superintendent

s o 350 N. Main Street - Rockford, MI 49341
= Together Building a Tradition of Excellence Phone: 616.863.6556 - Fax: 616.866.1911

Memorandum
To: Dr. Steve Matthews
From: Mike Ramm, Assistant Superintendent of Instruction

Date: July 11, 2024
Subject: 2024/25 RPS Sex Education Advisory Chair Recommendations

Dr. Matthews:

Every school district that chooses to implement a sex education program must have a Sex Education
Advisory Board (SEAB) consisting of two, school board-appointed co-chairs with at least one being a
parent of a child attending a school operated by the district. As previously presented RPS includes
developmentally appropriate sex ed programming in elementary, middle and high school.

As part of the annual requirements for programming, the Sex Education Advisory Board is required to
identify two co-chairs. The purpose of this memo is to propose that the two existing co-chairs remain on
the SEAB for the 2024/25 school year: myself, Mike Ramm, and Stephanie Linsley, a current high school
teacher. | have two children in the district who will attend Rockford Freshman Center and Rockford High
School in the fall and Stephanie has three children who will attend NRMS, Rockford Freshman Center and
the High School.

The co-chairs will lead committee work during the 2024/25 school year that will continually enhance
programming to best meet the needs of our students.

Please let me know if you have any questions.

Mike Ramm

www.rockfordschools.org



Rockford Public Schools Finance Department

Allison Clements, Executive Director
of Business and Operations

350 N. Main Street (*) Rockford, MI 49341

Quality Community — Quality Schools
Together Building a Tradition of Excellence

Phone: 616.863.6555 (¥) Fax: 616.866.1911

Memorandum

To: Dr. Steve Matthews, Superintendent of Schools

From: Allison Clements, Executive Director of Business and Operations
Date: July 9, 2024

Subject: Saddle Ridge Water and Sanitary Sewer Agreement

Attached is the opinion letter for Edgerton Trails Elementary School water and sewer connections. Also
included is a resolution to allow Dr. Steve Matthews to execute water and sanitary sewer service to the
school property and a cost allocation letter concerning the same.

The recommendation is to approve the resolution allowing Dr. Steven Matthews to execute the
agreement as prepared and reviewed by legal counsel.

ATC/jg

Attachment

www.rockfordschools.org



[T] THRUN

Rockford Public Schools, Kent County, Michigan (the “District™)

A regular meeting of the board of education of the District (the “Board”) was held in the
, within the boundaries of the District, on the

day of , 2024, at o’clock in the _.m. (the “Meeting”).

The Meeting was called to order by , President.

Present: Members

Absent:  Members

The following preamble and resolution were offered by Member
and supported by Member :

WHEREAS, the District is constructing a new elementary school name “Edgerton Trails
Elementary School” (the “School Property”) and requires water and sanitary sewer service; and

WHEREAS, to provide water and sanitary sewer service to the School Property, the
District and the Saddle Ridge Site Condominium Association have negotiated a Water and Sanitary
Sewer Agreement, a copy of which is attached hereto and made a part thereof as Attachment “1”
(the “Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, the Board has determined that it would be in the best interests of the District
to obtain water and sanitary sewer service for the School Property upon the terms and conditions
contained in the Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Board desires to authorize and direct Steven Matthews, the
Superintendent of Schools, or his designee, to execute the Agreement and to take any other action
required to obtain water and sanitary sewer service to the School Property, subject to review and
approval by the District’s legal counsel.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

1. The Board hereby approves the Agreement to provide water and sanitary sewer
service to the School Property.

2. The Board authorizes and directs Steven Matthews, the Superintendent of Schools,
or his designee, to execute the Agreement, and to take any other action required to obtain water
and sanitary sewer service to the School Property, subject to review and approval by the District’s
legal counsel.




[ THRUN

3. All resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with the provisions
of this resolution be and the same are hereby rescinded.

Ayes:  Members

Nays:  Members

Resolution declared adopted.

Secretary, Board of Education

The undersigned duly qualified and acting Secretary of the Board of Education of Rockford
Public Schools, Kent County, Michigan, hereby certifies that the foregoing constitutes a true and
complete copy of a resolution adopted by the Board at the Meeting, the original of which is part
of the Board’s minutes. The undersigned further certifies that notice of the Meeting was given to
the public pursuant to the provisions of the “Open Meetings Act” (Act 267, Public Acts of
Michigan, 1976, as amended).

Secretary, Board of Education

GWV/ssw




WATER AND SANITARY SEWER SERVICE AGREEMENT

THIS WATER AND SANITARY SEWER SERVICE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is
entered into by and between the Saddle Ridge Site Condominium Association, a Michigan non-
profit corporation, (the “Association”) and Rockford Public Schools, a Michigan general powers
school district organized and operating under the provisions of the Revised School Code, MCL
380.1, et seq., as amended (“School District”). In this Agreement, the Association and the School
District may be referred to individually as “Party” or collectively as “Parties”.

RECITALS

A. The Association owns and operates a private wastewater collection and treatment
facility that transports and treats sanitary sewage (the “Sewer System”). The Sewer System is
authorized by, and is subject to, a State of Michigan individual national pollution discharge
elimination system permit with a permit number of M10056723.

B. The Association owns and operates a private drinking water treatment and supply
system (the “Water System”). In this Agreement, the Water System and the Sewer System are
referred to collectively as the “Private Utilities”.

C. The School District wishes to obtain wastewater collection and treatment services
and wishes to obtain water supply services from the Private Utilities for use in its buildings and
facilities located on the property further described and depicted on Exhibit A (the “School District
Property”), which option to connect to the Private Utilities was granted to the School District when
it acquired the Property.

D. The Association and School District are Parties to a certain Wastewater
Transportation Agreement whereby Plainfield Charter Township will construct and make available
for use by the School District and Association a public sanitary sewer system (the “Public Sanitary
Sewer”) that will accept and treat the wastewater generated by the School District and Association.

E. During the period of time in which the Public Sanitary Sewer is not available for
use as defined by this Agreement, then the School District wishes to connect to the Sewer System
until such time as the Public Sanitary Sewer becomes available for use.

F. The School District and the Association agree to allocate the costs for the
construction of the Public Sanitary Sewer as outlined in this Agreement.

G. In response to the School District’s request to connect to the Private Ultilities, the
Association has undertaken, and will continue to undertake, improvements to the Private Utilities
to account for the School District’s planned future usage and the School District wishes to
compensate the Association for the cost of these improvements in the form of a connection fee.

H. The Parties wish to enter into this Agreement to establish and define the scope of
the provision of the Private Ultilities to the School District along with the rates and charges that the

03-21-24 — GWV Change
4872-2382-5615, v. 1s



School District will pay to the Association based on its usage of the Private Utilities along with a
contribution for capital improvements and maintenance and related matters.

Therefore, the Parties agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

Article 1
Definitions

Applicable Laws means all statutes, codes, ordinances, administrative rules, regulations, orders,
or directives of any court or governmental authority.

Available for Use means the date that the Public Sanitary Sewer is constructed, and Wastewater
may be transported through the Public Sanitary Sewer for treatment such that it is no longer
necessary for the Association to treat or dispose of Wastewater with the Sewer System.

Effective Date means the date thirty (30) days after the last Party’s signature below.

Private Utility Charges means the Water Commodity Charge, the Water User Charge, the Sewer
Commodity Charge, the Sewer User Charge, the excess water consumption penalty, and the excess
wastewater discharge rates.

Prudent Utility Practices means those practices, methods, techniques, standards and acts engaged
in or approved by a significant portion of the regulated water and sewer utility industry in the
United States or any of the practices, methods, techniques, standards and acts which, in the exercise
of reasonable judgment in light of the facts known (or which a qualified and prudent operator could
reasonably be expected to have known) at the time a decision is made, would have been expected
to accomplish a desired result at a reasonable cost consistent with good business practices,
reliability, safety and expedition, in each case related to the operation, maintenance and
improvement of similar systems at utility franchises of the same or similar size and type as the
Private Utilities.

Private Utility Charges means the Water Commodity Charge, the Water User Charge, the Sewer
Commodity Charge, and the Sewer User Charge.

Residential Equivalent Unit means the amount of water or wastewater usage expected to be used
by a single-family home within the Saddle Ridge Condominium Association as estimated utilizing
Prudent Utility Practices.

Sewer Commodity Charge means the cost per 1,000 gallons of Wastewater delivered to the
Association as measured at the Sewer Flow Meter (defined below).

Sewer User Charge means the monthly service charge to be paid by the School District to the
Association based on the School District’s relative share of the costs and expenses of the
Association’s operation of the Sewer System.

2

03-21-24 — GWV Change
4872-2382-5615, v. 1s



Unacceptable Waste means any stormwater runoff, chemical wastes, biological wastes, radioactive
materials, rock, sand, dirt, solid or viscous materials that could interfere with the flow of
Wastewater, materials that could create a fire or explosion hazard, solvents, oils, or any substance
that would be classified as hazardous waste under the federal Resource Conservation and Recovery
Act (RCRA) and Part 111 (Hazardous Waste Management) of Act 451.

Wastewater means liquid waste that includes any of the following: 1) human metabolic wastes, 2)
wastes from a sink, lavatory, bathtub, shower, laundry, or similar facilities, or 3) any other liquid
waste of an organic nature discharged on the School District property.

Water Commodity Charge means the cost per 1,000 gallons of water delivered to the School
District as measured at the Water Flow Meter (defined below).

Water User Charge means the monthly service charge to be paid School District to the Association
based on the School District’s relative share of the costs and expenses of the Association’s
operation of the Water System.

Article I1
Private Utility Service

Section 1. Water Services

(a) Connection Point. The School District shall connect to the Water System at the
location identified on the attached Exhibit B with a eight (8) inch water main (the “Water System
Connection Point™). The School District shall be responsible for all costs and expenses related to
or arising out of the initial construction of the Water System Connection Point. The School District
shall construct, inspect, and test the Water System Connection Point in compliance with all
Applicable Laws and the plans and specifications approved by the Association.

(b) System Ownership and Maintenance. All pipes, valves, fittings, connections, and
other related appurtenances on the School District Property including and downstream of the Water
System Connection Point are owned by the School District and the School District is responsible
for all operation and maintenance of those facilities and equipment at its sole expense. The Water
System upstream of the Water System Connection Point is owned by the Association and the
Association is responsible for all operation and maintenance of the same. The Parties shall keep
all components of the Water System and the Water System Connection Point in a good and
functional condition, consistent with Prudent Utility Practices, and sufficient to prevent
unreasonable waste.

(©) Water Provision. The Association shall provide water in an amount no less than
ONE MILLION FOUR HUNDRED TEN THOUSAND (1,410,500) gallons in each calendar year
(the “Maximum Annual Water Supply”) and FIVE THOUSAND FOUR HUNDRED AND
TWENTY FIVE (5,425) gallons each calendar day (the “Maximum Daily Water Supply’) The
Association may refuse to supply water in excess of either the Maximum Annual Water Supply or
the Maximum Daily Water Supply. If the Association supplies water to the School District in
excess of either the Maximum Annual Water Supply or Maximum Daily Water Supply, the
Association may charge the School District the excess water consumption penalty rate as specified

3

03-21-24 — GWV Change
4872-2382-5615, v. 1s



in Article III, Section 2(¢) of this Agreement. The School District shall only use the water received
from the Association on the School District Property for usual and customary school uses and shall
not re-sell the water to any third-party or supply water to any use not occurring on the School
District Property. Subject to the Maximum Daily Water Supply and Maximum Annual Water
Supply provisions of this Agreement, the Association shall provide water at a minimum of one
hundred eighty (180) gallons per minute for daily use and a minimum of five hundred eighty (580)
gallons per minute for building fire suppression purposes.

(d) Meter. The School District shall install and maintain a flow meter near the Water
System Connection Point to accurately measure the volume of water delivered by the Association
at the Water System Connection Point (the “Water Flow Meter”). Beginning on the Effective
Date, and annually thereafter, the School District shall obtain third party certification of the meter’s
calibration and operation. The certification will be provided to the Association in a timely manner
upon request.

(e) Water Pressure. The Association shall utilize Prudent Utility Practices to deliver
water at a pressure range (“Pressure Range”) between forty (40) psi and sixty (60) psi as measured
at the Water System Connection Point. The Association is permitted to deliver water at a pressure
outside of the Pressure Range if circumstances exist outside of the control of the Association
including power failure, supply line breaks, maintenance outages, etc. that do not permit the
Association to deliver water within the Pressure Range. The Association has no obligation or
responsibility, and makes no warranty, for the pressure of any water downstream of the Water
System Connection Point.

63} Water Quality. The Association shall utilize Prudent Utility Practices to deliver
water to the Water System Connection Point of the same quality and standards supplied to other
users of the Water System. The Association shall be responsible for meeting state and federal
standards for drinking water at the Water System Connection Point, but the Association shall have
no liability or responsibility for water quality beyond the Water System Connection Point and the
Association makes no warranties regarding water quality downstream of the Water System
Connection Point.

(2) Remedy for Non-Compliance with the Pressure Range or Water Quality. If the
Association consistently delivers water at the Water System Connection Point outside of the
Pressure Range or water quality or flow standards provided by Section 10of this Article, the School
District shall request that the Parties meet within thirty calendar days to discuss the reasons for the
non-compliance and, if agreed necessary, develop, and implement a mutually agreeable written
corrective action plan within sixty calendar days of the meeting, or as otherwise agreed. The
corrective action plan shall include a timetable for resolution of the non-compliance issues. If the
Association fails to reasonably follow the corrective action plan and the non-compliance issue
persists, the School District may pursue any other remedy provided by this Agreement.

(h) Water Supply Interruption or Shortage

(1) Emergencies. To the extent feasible, the Association shall continuously
maintain water service to the School District. In the event of a general emergency or water

4

03-21-24 — GWV Change
4872-2382-5615, v. 1s



shortage affecting the Water System and requiring restriction on the delivery of water to the Water
Supply Connection Point, the Association may restrict the water supplied to the Water Supply
Connection Point in the same proportion that it is restricting supply to all users of water supplied
by the Association. The Association shall utilize Prudent Utility Practices to resume the
continuous supply of water as soon as practicable.

) Routine Maintenance. The Association shall provide the School District
with no less than ten (10) business days advanced written notice of any routine maintenance of the
Private Ultilities necessitating a reduction in the supply of water delivered to the Water Supply
Connection Point. To the extent practical and consistent with Prudent Utility Practices, the
Association shall schedule routine maintenance in the months of July or August, or such other
dates and times as school is not in session.

(1) Discontinuance of Use of Water System. The School District may, at its option,
discontinue use of the Water System. In such event, the School District shall provide written notice
to the Association at least ninety (90) days prior to it discontinuing use of the Water System. Upon
termination of the School District’s use of the Water System, it shall comply with the termination
provisions contained in Article IV, Section 2, herein, and pay all costs and other expenses
described in Article III, Section 2, herein.

Section 2. Sewer Services

(a) Connection Point. The School District has made a connection to the Sewer System
at the location identified on the attached Exhibit B with a six (6) inch gravity line from the building
to the property line, where an eight (8) inch stub was connected (the “Sewer System Connection
Point”). The School District has paid for all costs and expenses related to or arising out of the
initial construction of the Sewer System Connection Point. The School District shall inspect and
test the Sewer System Connection Point in compliance with all Applicable Laws and the plans and
specifications approved by the Association.

(b) System Ownership and Maintenance. All pipes, valves, fittings, connections, and
other related appurtenances on the School District Property including and upstream of the Sewer
System Connection Point are owned by the School District and the School District is responsible
for all operation and maintenance of those facilities and equipment at its sole expense. The Sewer
System downstream of the Sewer System Connection Point is owned by the Association and the
Association is responsible for all operation and maintenance of the same. The Parties shall keep
all components of the Sewer System and the Sewer System Connection Point in a good and
functional condition, consistent with Prudent Utility Practices, and sufficient to prevent
unreasonable waste.

(c) Service. During the time the School District utilizes the Sewer System, the Parties
agree:

(1) Acceptance of Flow. The Association shall accept Wastewater from the
School District Property in an amount not to exceed ONE MILLION FOUR HUNDRED TEN
THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED GALLONS (1,410,500) gallons each calendar year (the “Sewer

5

03-21-24 — GWV Change
4872-2382-5615, v. 1s



System Annual Maximum”™) as measured at the Sewer System Connection Point. The Association
shall accept Wastewater from the School District Property in an amount not to exceed FIVE
THOUSAND FOUR HUNDRED TWENTY-FIVE (5,425) gallons each calendar day (the “Sewer
System Daily Maximum™) as measured at the Sewer System Connection Point. If the School
District discharges Wastewater into the Sewer System in excess of the Sewer System Annual
Maximum or the Sewer System Daily Maximum, the School District shall pay to the Association
the excess sewer discharge penalty rate as outlined in Article III, Section 3(c) of this Agreement.
The School District shall not discharge Wastewater to the Sewer System that was not generated
on the School District Property.

(i)  Maximum Rate. The School District shall not deliver Wastewater to the
Sewer System Connection Point at a rate exceeding three hundred gallons per minute (300 GPM)
(the “Sewer System Maximum Rate”) without the Association’s prior approval, which the
Association may grant or withhold as it determines in the best interest of the Sewer System. In
light of the damage to the Sewer System that could be caused by the School District discharging
Wastewater in excess of the Sewer System Maximum Rate, the School District is responsible for
and shall promptly reimburse the Association for all actual costs, damages, and expenses caused
by the School District discharging, or attempting to discharge, Wastewater into the Sewer System
in excess of the Sewer System Maximum Rate.

(d) Unacceptable Waste. The School District shall not discharge, or attempt to
discharge, any Unacceptable Waste into the Sewer System. In light of the damage to the Sewer
System that could be caused by the School District discharging Unacceptable Waste into the Sewer
System, the School District is responsible for all actual costs, damages, and expenses caused by
the School District discharging, or attempting to discharge, Unacceptable Waste into the Sewer
System. The School District shall utilize best efforts to ensure that users of the facilities on the
School District Property do not discharge Unacceptable Waste into the Sewer System

(e) Meter. The School District shall install and maintain a flow meter near the Sewer
System Connection Point to accurately measure the volume of Wastewater delivered by the School
District at the Sewer System Connection Point (the “Sewer System Flow Meter””). Beginning on
the Effective Date and annually thereafter, the School District shall obtain third party certification
of the meter’s calibration and operation. The certification will be provided to the Association in a
timely manner upon request.

63} Prompt Notification of Unusual Conditions. The School District shall promptly
notify the Association regarding any proposed spills, pollutants, large discharges, chemicals, or
any substantial change in the volume or amount of discharge into the Sewer System.

(2) Discontinuance of Wastewater Drainage. The School District may, at its option,
discontinue the discharge of wastewater into the Sewer System. In such event, the School District
shall provide written notice to the Association at least ninety (90) days prior to its discontinuing
the discharge of wastewater into the Sewer System. Upon the termination of the School District’s
discharge of wastewater into the Sewer System, it shall comply with the termination provisions
contained in Article IV, Section 2., herein, and pay the costs and other expenses described in
Article V, Section 1., herein. At such time as the Public Sanitary Sewer becomes Available for

6

03-21-24 — GWV Change
4872-2382-5615, v. 1s



Use, the School District shall discontinue its discharge of Wastewater to the Sewer System for
treatment and disposal and the Association will have no further responsibility for the disposal or
treatment of Wastewater. The Association shall continue to operate and maintain a collector main
leading from the Sewer System Connection Point to the point of transfer of Wastewater to the
Public Sanitary Sewer the route of which is outlined on the attached Exhibit C (the “Collector
Main”).

Article 111
Private Utility Rates, Fees, and Charges

Section 1. Connection Fee. In order to reimburse the Association for the costs that the Association
has incurred, or will incur, for improvements to the Water System occasioned by the School
District’s connection, on the Effective Date, the School District shall pay to the Association the
sum of TWO HUNDRED NINETY FIVE THOUSAND SEVEN HUNDRED TWENTY NINE
AND 00/100 DOLLARS (295,729) as a nonrefundable fee to connect to the Water System.

Section 2. Water Rates

(a) Initial Water Commodity Charge. For an initial period of at least twelve (12)
months following the Effective Date and until the Association adjusts the Water Commodity
Charge pursuant to Article III, Section 5, the School District shall pay to the Association a Water
Commodity Charge of $4.18.

(b) User Charge. The School District shall pay the Association the Water User Charge
starting from the original date of connection, which pre-dated the Effective Date of this Agreement,
in accordance with applicable usage requirements. In addition, for an initial period of at least
twelve (12) months following the Effective Date and until the Association adjusts the Water User
Charge pursuant to Article 11, Section 5, the School District shall pay to the Association a monthly
Water User Charge of $209.12.

(©) Excess Water Consumption Penalty Rate. If the Association delivers water to the
School District in excess of either the Maximum Annual Water Supply or Maximum Daily Water
Supply, the School District shall be responsible for an excess water consumption penalty rate of
ONE HUNDRED AND FIFTY PERCENT (150%)of the then existing Water Commodity Charge
per 1,000 gallons of water, or portion thereof, delivered to the School District Property in excess
of the Maximum Annual Water Supply or Maximum Daily Water Supply.

(d) Extraordinary Capital Expenses. The Connection Fee in Article III, Section 1,
above, includes all costs to upgrade the Water System to provide water supply to the School
District Property at the quantity, quality, supply, and pressure specifications provided for by this
Agreement. If the Association encounters extraordinary capital or operational expenses for the
Water System, the Association may charge to the School District an extraordinary capital expense
charge that is charged in common to all users of the Private Utilities based on a proportionate share
of the School District’s use of the Private Utilities. The amount of the School District’s
extraordinary capital expense charge shall be in proportion to the School District’s usage of the
relevant Private Utility based on the number of REU’s of the School District’s Private Utility usage

7

03-21-24 — GWV Change
4872-2382-5615, v. 1s



for the preceding twelve (12) month period. The Association shall only use any extraordinary
capital expenses charged pursuant to this Section 2(d) for the ongoing or future operational or
maintenance needs of Private Utilities. The Association shall provide the School District with no
less than six (6) months’ advanced written notice prior to the effective date of any extraordinary
capital expense charges. As used in this Section 2(d) the term “extraordinary capital or operational
expenses” shall mean a non-recurring expense that is unexpected or special and not related to the
day-to-day ordinary maintenance and repair of the Private Utilities, or costs associated with
upgrades

Section 3. Sewer Rates. During the period in which a connection to the Sewer System exists
and the School district is discharging wastewater the Parties agree:

(a) Commodity Charge. The School District shall pay to the Association a Sewer
Commodity Charge based on the actual costs incurred by the Association in the treatment, hauling,
and disposal of Wastewater generated by the School District Property. The Association shall
compute the actual costs owed by determining the Association’s actual cost to haul and dispose of
Wastewater per 1,000 gallons, which amount shall be consistent with all users of the Sewer
System, and multiplying that figure by the amount of Wastewater delivered by the School District
as measured at the Sewer Flow Meter.

(b) Excess Wastewater Discharge Penalty Rate. If the School District discharges
Wastewater to the Sewer System in excess of either the Sewer System Annual Maximum or the
Sewer System Daily Maximum, the School District shall be responsible for an excess wastewater
discharge penalty rate of ONE HUNDRED AND FIFTY PERCENT (150%) of the then existing
Sewer Commodity Charge per 1,000 gallons of discharge, or portion thereof, in excess of the
Sewer System Annual Maximum or Sewer System Daily Maximum.

Section 4.  Billing. The Association shall prepare and send to the School District an itemized
monthly invoice for all charges and fees incurred by School District as provided by this Agreement.
All invoices are due and payable within forty-five (45) days of receipt. Late payments will incur a
late payment fee equal to 1% of the unpaid balance for every forty-five (45) days, or part thereof,
until the balance is paid in full.

Section 5. Adjustment in Rates. The Association may amend, no more frequently than every
twelve (12) months, the Private Utility Charges as necessary to accommodate increased costs in
providing the Private Utilities.

(a) Methodology for Rate Adjustment. If the Association wishes to adjust the Private
Utility Charges, the Association shall utilize actual consumption data collected from the School
District Property for the preceding twelve (12) month period to determine the number of REU’s
of water being delivered to the School District Property and the number of REU’s of Wastewater
being discharged by the School District Property (the “Revised REU’s™). The Association shall
utilize the Revised REU’s to adjust the Private Utility Charges to reflect the School District’s
proportional use of the Private Utilities. However, in no event shall the Association charge the
School District an amount per REU that is in excess of that charged to other users of the Private
Utilities.

03-21-24 — GWV Change
4872-2382-5615, v. 1s



(b) Notice to the School District. As soon as possible in the rate adjustment process
provided by Article III, Section 5, the Association shall inform the School District of the
preliminary actual consumption data and proposed rates to assist the School District in financial
planning. The Association shall provide the School District with no less than three (3) months’
advanced written notice prior to the effective date of any adjustment in the Private Utility Charges.

Section 7. Meter Failure. If, for any reason, the Water Flow Meter or the Sewer System Flow
Meter are unreadable, unusable, inoperable, or do not accurately function, the Association shall
use the best available data and Prudent Utility Practices to estimate the Private Utility Charges
owed by the School District.

Section 8. Non-Payment. If any sums, fees, or charges are owed by the School District pursuant
to this Agreement and remain unpaid for one-hundred twenty (120) days or greater, the Association
may shut off and refuse to provide water service to the School District. The Association shall
promptly restore water service to the School District upon receipt of all past due sums, fees, or
charges.
Article IV
Term and Termination

Section 1. Term. This Agreement will be effective as of the Effective Date and shall continue
until December 31, 2074. The term of this Agreement will be extended on the same terms and
provisions or other mutually agreeable terms and provisions by one or more renewals unless not
less than five years prior to the expiration date of this Agreement, or the expiration of any
additional renewal term, a Party gives the other Party notice of intent not to renew. If no such
notice is given, this Agreement shall automatically renew for a ten-year extension on the same
terms. If a notice on non-renewal is provided and if the other Party still desires to renew the
agreement the Parties agree that the terms and conditions of the renewal shall be subject to the
arbitration provisions contained in Article VIII, Section 2, herein.

Section 2. Termination Upon the termination or expiration of this Agreement for any reason, the
School District shall promptly retire and abandon its connection to the Private Ultilities in
compliance with all applicable laws and regulations and take all actions necessary to restore the
Private Utilities to the condition existing prior to the Effective Date.

Article V
Construction and Inspection

Section 1. Future Construction or Maintenance. Except in the case of emergency, prior to
initiating any construction or maintenance work that may impact or impair the Private Utilities,
the School District shall provide the Association with thirty (30) days advanced written notice of
the proposed construction or maintenance work and submit the plans and specifications of the
proposed construction or maintenance work for the Association’s review and approval. Said
approval will not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed. The School District shall
diligently complete all construction or maintenance work skillfully, in a good and reasonable

9

03-21-24 — GWV Change
4872-2382-5615, v. 1s



manner, in compliance with all applicable codes and laws, and in conformance with the approved
plans and specifications. If the School District damages any portion of the Private Utilities as the
result of or arising out of any construction or maintenance activities on the School District
Property, the School District shall promptly reimburse the Association for all damages, costs, and
expenses to the Private Utilities occasioned by the School District’s construction and maintenance
activities.

Section 2. Inspection and Testing. The Association, and its contractors, agents, and assigns,
may, during normal business hours and with prior written notification to the School District, enter
upon the School District Property to observe, inspect, and test any portion of the School District’s
plumbing or waste discharge system that directly or indirectly connects to the Private Utilities.
The Association, and its contractors, agents, and assigns, may enter upon the exterior of the School
District property at any time in order to prevent or repair damage to the Private Utilities or take
such other action reasonably necessary to ensure the proper functioning of the Private Utilities.

Article VI
The Public Sanitary Sewer

Section 1. Availability of Public Sanitary Sewer. As of the date the Public Sanitary Sewer
becomes Available for Use, the School District shall discharge wastewater flow to the Public
Sanitary Sewer System for treatment and disposal and the Association will have no further
responsibility for the disposal or treatment of Wastewater. The Association shall continue to
operate and maintain the Collector Main. The School District shall comply with all applicable
laws, regulations, and Prudent Utility Practices. Any unpaid costs, fees, charges, and other
expenses under this Agreement owed to the Association prior to the transition to the Public
Sanitary Sewer will be promptly remitted by the School District.

Section 2. Costs of the Public Sanitary Sewer. The School District shall pay to Plainfield Charter
Township the sum of NINE HUNDRED NINETY-SEVEN THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED
SIXTY-TWO DOLLARS ($997.362) as its proportionate share of the costs of the construction of
the Public Sanitary Sewer. This amount is based on the construction and engineering costs of the
Public Sanitary Sewer, easements for public sanitary sewer facilities, Collector Main and other
infrastructure and easement costs given School District’s percentage use and benefit of connecting
to the Public Sewer System and related amenities.

Section 3. Maintenance of the Collector Main. The Association may charge to the School
District the Association’s costs and expenses in maintaining and operating the Collector Main on
a basis proportionate to the School District’s use of the Collector Main. The amount of the School
District’s contribution to the operation and maintenance of the Collector Main shall be in
proportion to the School District’s usage of the relevant Private Utility based on the number of
REU’s of the School District’s Private Utility usage for the preceding twelve (12) month period,
or such short period of a twelve (12) month period is not available.

Article VII
Representations

10

03-21-24 — GWV Change
4872-2382-5615, v. 1s



Section 1. Representation by the School District. The School District represents, warrants, and
covenants that:

(a) All necessary permissions, approvals, reviews, or any other forms of acquiescence
necessary to authorize the School District to enter into this Agreement have been obtained and
conducted.

(b) The School District shall use commercially reasonable efforts to provide all
information within its control requested by the Association to the Association necessary to
effectuate the purposes of this Agreement.

(©) The School District shall use its best efforts to take commercially reasonable
actions to minimize any waste of the Private Utilities.

(d) The School District shall use its best efforts to take commercially reasonable
actions to prevent any Unacceptable Waste from entering into the Sewer System.

(e) The School District shall cooperate with the Association with respect to the
development and submission of applications for all local, state, and federal permits necessary for
the operation of the Private Utilities.

Section 1. Representation by the Association. The Association represents, warrants, and
covenants that:

(a) All necessary permissions, approvals, reviews, or any other forms of acquiescence
necessary to authorize the Association to enter into this Agreement have been obtained and
conducted.

(b) The Association shall use commercially reasonable efforts to provide all
information within its control requested by the Association to the Association necessary to
effectuate the purposes of this Agreement.

(c) The Association shall use Prudent Utility Practices to minimize the cost of the
Private Utilities to the School District.

(d) The Association shall use Prudent Utility Practices to maintain and operate the
Private Utilities.

Article VIII
Breach and Remedy

Section 1. Default Provisions. With the exclusion of the collection of any costs, sums, or charges
owed to the Association pursuant to this Agreement or where this Agreement expressly provides
otherwise, in the event that either Party commits a material breach of this Agreement, the Party
alleging the breach shall give written notice of the breach to the other Party within a reasonable
time of discovering the breach. The Party in breach shall be given 30 days to cure the breach. If

11

03-21-24 — GWV Change
4872-2382-5615, v. 1s



the Party in breach fails to cure the breach, the non-breaching Party may declare the Agreement in
default and, subject to the Dispute Resolution process set forth in Section 2 below, pursue all
available legal remedies.

Section 2. Arbitration. Any dispute, claim, or grievance arising out of or relating to the
interpretation or application of this Agreement and any disputes, claims, or grievances arising
among or between the Parties shall be submitted to arbitration; and the Parties shall accept the
arbitrator’s decision and award as final and binding. The arbitration rules of the American
Arbitration Association, as amended and in effect from time to time, shall apply to all such
arbitrations. Election by the School District or by the Association to submit any dispute, claim, or
grievance to arbitration shall preclude that Party from litigating the dispute, claim, or grievance in
the courts.

Article IX
Miscellaneous

Section 1. Notices  All notices required or permitted under this Agreement must be in writing.
delivered to the respective Party at the following addresses via certified US Mail effective upon
receipt.

If to the School District:

Rockford Public Schools

Attn: Superintendent of Schools
350 Main Street

Rockford, Michigan 49341-1092

With copies to:

Rockford Public Schools

Attn: Assistant Superintendent of Schools
350 Main Street

Rockford, Michigan 49341-1092

Thrun Law Firm, P.C.

Attn: President

2900 West Road, Suite 400
East Lansing, Michigan 48823

If to the Association:

Brett Gorby

President

2887 E. Morgan Trail NE
Rockford, MI 49341

12

03-21-24 — GWV Change
4872-2382-5615, v. 1s



With a copy to:

Bloom Sluggett, PC

c/o President

161 Ottawa Ave NW, Suite 400
Grand Rapids, MI 49508

Section 2. Assignment. The Association may sell, transfer, or assign, the Private Utilities, or a
portion thereof, or its ownership and operational responsibilities for the Private Utilities. The
School District acknowledges and agrees that Algoma Township, or another governmental entity
may undertake ownership and operational responsibility for the Private Utilities as permitted or
required by law.

Section 3. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same
instrument

Section 4. No Third Party Beneficiaries. There are no third-party beneficiaries to this Agreement
nor is it the intent of the Parties that any third-party beneficiary rights of any kind or nature shall
accrue. Without limiting the foregoing, the Parties acknowledge and agree that only the School
District Property is intended to be served by the Private Utilities as a result of this Agreement.

Section 5. Entire Agreement. This Agreement represents the entire understanding and agreement
between the Parties. All prior understandings and agreements are specifically merged herein.

Section 6. Captions. The captions appearing under the terms of this Agreement are for
convenience purposes only and do not in any way limit or amplify the terms or provisions of this
Agreement; provided, however, that the recitals set forth above are intended to constitute an
integral part of this Agreement.

Section 7. Applicable Law. The Agreement shall be construed and interpreted according to the
laws of the State of Michigan.

Section 8. Saving Clause. If any term of this Agreement is found to be void, invalid, or
unenforceable, the validity and enforceability of the remaining terms and provisions of this
Agreement shall not be affected or impaired thereby and shall continue in full force and effect.

99 ¢es

Section 9. Interpretation. The words “including,” “includes,” and “include” are to be read as if
they were followed by the phrase “without limitation™.

[SIGNATURES ON THE FOLLOWING PAGES]

13

03-21-24 — GWV Change
4872-2382-5615, v. 1s



03-21-24 — GWV Change
4872-2382-5615, v. 1s

14

Saddle Ridge Site Condominium
Association, a Michigan nonprofit corporation

By:

Its: President

Rockford Public Schools, a Michigan general
power school district

By:

Its:




EXHIBIT A

School District Property

Parcel Number: 41-06-27-226-004
Property Address: 9605 EDGERTON AVE NE

Description:

410627226004 PART OF E 1/2 OF SEC 27 COM 591.70 FT N 89D 34M 42S W ALONG E&W
1/4 LINE FROM E 1/4 COR TH S 14D 16M 34S W ALONG SD WLY LINE OF EDGERTON
AVE 163.45 FT TO NLY LINE OF SADDLE RIDGE DR TH N 75D 43M 26S W ALONG SD
NLY LINE 121.29 FT TH NWLY 216.50 FT ALONG SD NLY LINE ON A 280.0 FT RAD
CURVE TO RT /LONG CHORD BEARS N 53D 34M 22S W 211.15 FT/ TH N 31D 25M 18S
W ALONG SD NLY LINE 481.54 FT TH NWLY 202.12 FT ALONG SD NLY LINE ON A
283.0 FT RAD CURVE TO LT /LONG CHORD BEARS N 51D 52M 56S W 197.85 FT/ TO W
LINE OF E 1/2 NE 1/4 TH N 0D 44M 08S E ALONG SD W LINE 1432.31 FT TH S 89D 33M
17SE 531.77FT TH S 0D 41M 10S W 585.0 FT TH N 89D 17M 50S W 65.0 FT TH N 0D 42M
10S E 20.0 FT TH S 83D 43M 31S W 256.70 FT TH SLY 81.56 FT ALONG A 35 FT RAD
CURVE TO LT /LONG CHORD BEARS S 16D 58M 058 W 64.32 FT/ TH S 49D 47M 20S E
261.98 FT THN 61D 18M 48S E 35.0 FT TH S 28D 41M 14S E 214.34 FT TH S 89D 33M 178
E 704.79 FT TO WLY LINE OF EDGERTON AVE TH SWLY 225.64 FT ALONG SD WLY
LINE ON A 768.51 FT RAD CURVE TO RT /LONG CHORD BEARS S 28D 51M 54S W 224.83
FT/ TH S 37D 16M 34S W ALONG SD WLY LINE 334.17 FT TH SWLY ALONG SD WLY
LINE 348.64 FT ON 868.51 FT RAD CURVE TO LT /LONG CHORD BEARS S 25D 46M 348
W 346.31 FT/ TH S 14D 16M 34S W ALONG SD WLY LINE 189.62 FT TO BEG * SEC 27
TON R11W 29.40 A. SPLIT ON 02/28/2007 FROM 41-06-27-226-003;

15

03-21-24 — GWV Change
4872-2382-5615, v. 1s



EXHIBIT B

Water System and Sewer System Connection Points

il et
SN

Sewer System
Connection Point

Water System
Connection Point

Wit Trbwg wrd Cut Ir Erdrance~
Sqeing Sumimer 207 =

UTILITY SYMBOL LEGEND
FYVEDL ERCHIT RN

16

03-21-24 — GWV Change
4872-2382-5615, v. 1s



EXHIBIT C

Collector Main

17

03-21-24 — GWV Change
4872-2382-5615, v. 1s



Rockford Public Schools Finance Department

Allison Clements, Executive Director
of Business and Operations

350 N. Main Street (*) Rockford, MI 49341

Quality Community — Quality Schools
Together Building a Tradition of Excellence

Phone: 616.863.6555 (¥) Fax: 616.866.1911

Memorandum

To: Dr. Steve Matthews, Superintendent of Schools
From: Allison Clements, Executive Director of Business and Operations

Date: July 9, 2024
Subject: Reimbursement of General Funds from Bond for Edgerton Trails

As part of the water and sanitary sewer connection agreement for Edgerton Trails Elementary, the
district will be paying the water fee and the district’s share of municipal sanitary sewer costs. These
payments are eligible for payment from the General Fund or from the 2019 Bond proceeds. This
reimbursement resolution provides the district with an option to pay the aforementioned costs out of
the General Fund initially with a reimbursement from the 2019 Bond proceeds in the future.

The recommendation is to approve the resolution allowing the option of payment for the water and
sewer agreements.

ATC/jg

Attachment

www.rockfordschools.org



[T] THRUN

Rockford Public Schools, Kent County, Michigan (the “Issuer’)

A meeting of the board of education of the Issuer (the “Board”) was held in
the , within the boundaries of the Issuer, on the

day of ,20 L at o’clock in the _.m. (the “Meeting™).

The Meeting was called to order by , President.

Present: Members

Absent:  Members

The following preamble and resolution were offered by Member
and supported by Member :

WHEREAS:

1. At an election held in the District on May 7, 2019, the qualified electors of the
District authorized the issuance of bonds for the purpose of erecting, furnishing, and equipping a
new elementary school building; erecting, furnishing and equipping additions to school buildings;
remodeling, equipping and re-equipping, and furnishing and refurnishing school buildings;
acquiring, installing, equipping or re-equipping school buildings for instructional technology;
purchasing school buses; and acquiring, preparing, erecting, developing, improving, and equipping
playgrounds, play fields, athletic fields and facilities, and sites (the “Project™); and

2. The Internal Revenue Service authorizes, by regulation, the allocation of bond
proceeds to reimburse expenditures previously made by an issuer of bonds, being Section 1.150-
2; and

3. In anticipation and preparation for the Project, the District will incur certain
expenses related to the Project in advance of receipt of bond proceeds (the “Reimbursable
Expenses™); and

4. Payments of such expenses made by the Board are an advance from the General
Fund to be repaid upon the approval and receipt of bond proceeds.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

1. All of the payments of Reimbursable Expenses initially to be made with funds other
than proceeds of the 2025 School Building and Site Bonds, Series III (the “Bonds™) and then to be
reimbursed by the District from proceeds of the Bonds will be for costs of a type properly
chargeable to the capital account of the project under general income tax principles, non-recurring
working capital expenditures (of a type not customarily payable from current revenues), or costs
of issuing the Bonds. Other than any preliminary expenditures for architectural, engineering,
surveying, soil testing, costs of issuing the Bonds, or similar purposes that may have been paid
more than sixty (60) days prior to the date of this resolution, all such expenditures have been paid
not more than sixty (60) days earlier than the date of this resolution or will be paid on or after the
date of this resolution.




[T] THRUN

2. The payments of expenses and the purposes of said payments in an amount not to
exceed $1,300,000 are hereby approved, and the monies are authorized to be advanced from
monies on hand in the General Fund, which monies will be repaid to the General Fund from the
Bond proceeds when received. The debt service for the Bonds will be paid from unlimited tax
revenues.

3. The District shall reimburse the General Fund not earlier than the date on which the
expenses are paid and not later than the latter of:

(a) the date that is eighteen (18) months after the expenses are paid, or

(b) the date the Project is placed in service or abandoned, but in no event more
than three (3) years after the expenses are paid.

4. All resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with the provisions
of this resolution are hereby rescinded.

Ayes:  Members
Nays:  Members

Resolution declared adopted.

Secretary, Board of Education

The undersigned duly qualified and acting Secretary of the Board of Education of Rockford
Public Schools, Kent County, Michigan, hereby certifies that the foregoing constitutes a true and
complete copy of a resolution adopted by the Board at the Meeting, the original of which is part
of the Board’s minutes. The undersigned further certifies that notice of the Meeting was given to
the public pursuant to the provisions of the Open Meetings Act (Act 267, Public Acts of Michigan,
1976, as amended).

Secretary, Board of Education
IFK:baf




SADDLE

June 20, 2024

Rockford Public Schools
c/o Allison Clements
350 N. Main Street
Rockford, Ml 49341

Re: Saddle Ridge Condominium Association (the “Association”) and Rockford
Public Schools (the “School District”) - Plainfield Charter Township Lift Station and
Force Main Construction Costs Allocation

Dear Ms. Clements:

The purpose of this letter is to provide additional details and information surrounding the
Association’s allocation of the costs associated with the connection of the Association’s
wastewater system to the North Kent Sewer Authority. In brief, the project would involve the
construction of a sanitary sewer lift station and force main on the property of the Saddle Ridge
Condominium Association to be owned by the North Kent Sewer Authority along with the
construction of a collector pipe leading from the School District property through the Association
property to connect to the lift station.

The intention of the Association with this cost allocation is to 1) determine what is the School
District’s share of the usage of the overall sanitary sewer system and allocate the costs of
construction accordingly, and 2) indirectly compensate the Association for the value of the private
infrastructure and land of the Association that the School District will utilize in order to make the
North Kent connection. As a nonprofit corporation, the Association needs to ensure that the
general common elements of the Association (the roads and infrastructure) are not being utilized
by third party entities without compensation to the Association.

A. Percentage of Shar ni Wer.

The Association has calculated the average monthly amount of sewer volume that is
produced by the Homeowner’s within the Association along with the maximum amount of Rockford
Public Schools Sewer volume as requested by the School District. That leads to the School District
being allocated a 13.4% share (or 30 Residential Equivalent Units or REUs based on the 230 homes
within the Association) of the sewer capacity.

SUPPORTING CALCULATIONS: Shared Sanitary Sewer

Total Volume 40,400 % of Total
Homeowner Sewer Volume 35,000 86.6%
RPS Sewer Volume 5,400 13.4%

4854-2012-0008, v. 1



B. rth tructi - le Ri I i i

The approved bid for the construction of the force main and lift station that will allow the
Association and School District to connect to the North Kent Sewer System is $2,950,000. Utilizing
the School District’s 13.4% share of the sanitary sewer system as a metric to allocate those costs,
the School District is responsible for $395,300 while the Association is responsible for $2,554,700.

C. tructi in

The total costs for the construction engineering and design engineering for the force main
and lift station equal $311,300. Utilizing the School District’s 13.4% share of the sanitary sewer
system as a metric to allocate those costs, the School District is responsible for $41,714 while the
Association is responsible for $269,585.

The below chart is a summary of the allocation of the costs associated with the construction of the
force main and lift station.

HOMEOWNERS ROCKFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
TOTALS
Plainfiald Township - Ssddis Ridge Forcemain and Lift Station § 3281300
Design Enginseding s 186,100 $ 143842 BE.E% 13.4% 22,257
Construction Engineseing s 145,200 L 125,743 B6.e% 13.4% 18,457
Construction Costs for Force Main and Lift Station § 2,950,000 § 2,554,700 B6.6% 13.4% 395,300
D. Construction Costs for Collector Main running to the Lift Station

The project also involves the construction of a collector main running from the School
District property to the newly constructed lift station (the “Collector Main”). A copy of a map
depicting the Collector Main is attached to this letter as Attachment 1. Approximately 317 linear
feet of the Collector Main is dedicated solely to the use of the School District Property while 1,848
feet will be shared with 32 other homeowners within the development. For the 317-foot portion
that will be utilized solely by the School District, the School District will pay 100% of those
construction costs. Forthe 1,848-foot portion that will be shared with 32 other homes within the
Association, the School District will pay a 48% portion, reflecting the 30 REUs associated with the
School District property, while the Association will pay a 52% share of the construction costs of the
1,848 feet of Collector Main. Note, the accepted bid of the construction contractor reflects a cost
of $365 per linear foot cost for the construction of the Collector Main.

Accordingly, the School District’s allocation of the construction costs of the collector main
is reflected in the following chart.

ent/Infrastruct the Sadde : Inplace Value Lineal Ft $ Costper Ft  TOTAL RPS Portion
Sanitary Sewer Installed Value - RPS Lateral (From RPS Connection Point to Saddle Ridge Circle) 317 $365 115,705 100% 115,705
Sanitary Sewer Installed Value (RPS/HOA SHared) Installed Cost -(From Saddle Ridge Circle to Sewer Plant) 1,848 $365 674,520 48% 323,770

In sum, the School District is responsible for a $439,475 allocation of the Collector Main
construction costs and the Association is responsible for a $350,750 allocation of the Collector
Main construction costs.

The Collector Main will be constructed and located within the private right of way of the
Association. Accordingly, the Association is requiring an indirect contribution to account for the
value of these private assets that will be utilized by the School District. The Association has

assigned a value for these rights of $37.45 per linear foot of Collector Main installed. In addition to
4854-2012-0008, v. 1



indirectly compensating for the private land that will be utilized by the School District, this will also
compensate the Association for the future costs of land and road restoration occasioned by
maintenance and construction activities of the Collector Main. The $37.45 per linear foot will be
allocated in accordance with the previously identified figures of 48% for the shared portion of the
Collector Main and 100% for the exclusive portion of the Collector Main. In sum, the School
District will be allocated the following costs for the Collector Main’s use of the Association’s
private property.

Development/Infrastructure owned by the Sadde Ridge Community: Inplace Value LinealFt _ _$ Cost per Ft TOTAL _ RPS Portion
Commmunity Right Away's and E for Public Infr - Collector Main (Shared Portion) $ 69,208 1,848 69,208 48%
Commmunity Right Away's and Easements for Public Infrastructure - Collector Main (RPS Exclusive

Portion) $ 11,879 318 11,879 100%
E: Site Location of Lift Station Land Development Val

The lift station will be located on private land owned by the Association. The Association
will be required to dedicate an easement to the North Kent Sewer Authority to accommodate the
construction, operation, and maintenance of this lift station. This easement will prohibit the use of
the land for any purpose other than a lift station. Accordingly, the Association will require the
School District to make an indirect contribution to the Association to compensate the Association
for the land development value of the lift station site in proportion to the School District’s use of the
overall sewer system. The Association values the lift-station site at $200,000, with a 13.4% share
of that equaling $26,800.

G. lainfield Charter Township F in

In addition to the Collector Main, the project involves the construction of a force main to
carry wastewater from the lift station through and outside of the Association property. A map of
the proposed force main is attached to this letter as Attachment 2. The portion of the force main
on the Association property is approximately 3,200 feet. The force main will be located within the
private roadways and general common elements of the Association. The easement required by the
North Kent Sewer Authority will be 20 feet in width equating to 64,000 square feet of easement area
throughout the Association property. The Association is valuing the easement area at $5 per
square foot. Additionally, the Association is responsible for producing the surveyed easement
descriptions for 3,200 feet of force main which is estimated to cost approximately $50,000. The
Association will require the School District to indirectly compensate the Association for a 13.4%
share of these costs, totaling $49,580.

The summary of the School District’s allocation of the costs of the overall project is contained on
the spreadsheet attached as Attachment 3.

Please let me know if you have any further questions.
Sincerely,

Signer ID: VONMOO0ZS12...

Brett Gorby - President

Saddle Ridge Site Condominium Association

4854-2012-0008, v. 1

33,220

11,879




Attachment 1

4854-2012-0008, v. 1



Attachment 2

Proposed Saddle Ridge Force Main

March 22, 2024

b 4 »

.,
ey

[ —  sss—
0 00125 0025 0.05 Y

4854-2012-0008, v. 1



Proposed Saddle Ridge Force Main

4854-2012-0008, v. 1



L "A '8000-2102-¥58%

196°£66 $
0856V %Y'eT
[14:841 %001
ozz'ee %8y
008'9Z %Y'ET
0LL'eeE %8y
S0L'STT %00T
uoyod Sdd
00£'S6€ %P'EL
LSY'6T %b'ET
Lsz'Te %t'ET
STOOHOS OITand a4oaNo0d

1ejo0L
000°0LE
[44: 811
80Z'69
000002
02S'vL9
S0L'STT
ioL

%9'98
%9'98
%998

uley diysumo] JanieyD plaluleld - 3IN19NNSEIU| DIGNd 10) SJUBWase] pue s Aemy Yty Aunwwiwo)
JAISN}OXTF SdY) UIB | 10103100 - 3IMONNISELU| 2GNd o) sjuawase] pue s Aemy 1ySiy Alunwwiwo)
(uon104 paieys) uie 103931109 - 3INJINNISELU| DGNd 10) SIUBWase] pue s, Aemy Y1y Ayunwwiwo)
(amena j0) Juawdojanap xoidde) uonels Y piayuleld Mau Jo anjeA uoieso) 3l

(1ue)d Jamas 01 312110 33pIY AIPPES WO14)- 150D PaNeIsu| (PaleHS YOH/SdY) anjeA pajelsu) 1amag Aieyues

000°'0LE $
SY'LE L1€ [74: 84 $
Sp'LE 8v8'l 802'69 $
000002 $
G9£$ 8v8'1
S9E$ L1E
11ad1s00 § 141eaun ameA aaeyduj
00L'vSST  $ 000'0s6'c  $
£VL'STT $ 00zZ'sv1 $
[a: 8541 $ 001991 $
00e'19Z'c $
SIVIoL
SHINMOIWOH

(212110 88p1Y 21pPES 011UJ04 UOIIIAUUOD SdY WWO14) |BI21ET SdY - anjeA Paj|eIsu| 1amas Aleyiues
37 3 PS oU] AQ POUMO 3l IMEHIIUIRUEN D ELE

UOEIS YIT PUB UIB Y 32104 10) SISOD UONINISUOD
Bupsauidulz uonannsuo)
Buueauiduz udisag

¥20T ‘8T aunr jo se
uoddns SdY - S1S09 JO UONEIONY SdH

€ Jawyseny



Annual Summer Tax Resolution

A regular meeting of the board of education of the District (the “Board”) was held:
in the Administration Building, within the boundaries of the District,

U electronically through with identification number

on the 15th day of July, 2024, at 5:30 o’clock in the p.m. (the “Meeting”)
The meeting was called to order by Jarrod Folsom, President.

Present; Members

Absent: Members
The following preamble and resolution were offered by Member and supported by Member
WHEREAS, this Board previously adopted a resolution to impose a summer tax levy to

collect 50% of annual school property taxes, including debt service, upon property located within
the District and continuing from year-to-year until specifically revoked by the Board.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

Z¢
ml
-
T:
| ol

1. The Board, pursuant to 1976 PA 451, as amended (the Revised School Code),
invokes for 2024 its previously adopted ongoing resolution imposing a summer tax levy of one-
half of annual school property taxes, including debt service, upon property located within the
District and continuing from year-to-year until specifically revoked by the Board and requests that
each city and/or township in which the District is located collect those summer taxes.

2, The Superintendent or designee is authorized and directed to forward to the
governing body of each city and/or township in which the District is located a copy of this Board’s
resolution imposing a summer property tax levy on an ongoing basis and a copy of this resolution
requesting that each such city and/or township agree to collect the summer tax levy for 2024 in the
amount specified in this resolution. Such forwarding of the resolutions and the request to collect
the summer tax levy shall be performed so that they are received by the appropriate governing
bodies before January 1, 2024,

3. Pursuant to and in accordance with Section 1613(1) of the Revised School Code,
the Superintendent or designee is authorized and directed to negotiate on behalf of the District with
the governing body of each city and/or township in which the District is located for the reasonable
expenses for collection of the District’s summer tax levy that the city and/or township may bill
under MCL 380.1611 or MCL 380.1612. Any such proposed agreement shall be brought before
this Board for its approval or disapproval.




4, All resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with the provisions
of this resolution be and the same are hereby rescinded.

Ayes: Members

Nays: Members

Resolution declared adopted.

Secretary, Board of Education

The undersigned duly qualified and acting Secretary of the Board of Education of
, hereby certifies that the foregoing
constitutes a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the Board at the Meeting, the
original of which is part of the Board’s minutes. The undersigned further certifies that notice of
the Meeting was given to the public pursuant to the provisions of the “Open Meetings Act” (Act
267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, as amended).

Secretary, Board of Education

Z
)
14
X
-

B Law Firm, £, C.




ROCkrord PUb"C SChOOIS Human Resources Department

Giiality Comitiunity = Otality Schiooks Dr. Korie Wilson-Crawford, Assistant Superintendent

350 N. Main Street - Rockford, Ml 49341
Together Building a Tradition of Excellence Phone: 616?2;63.6:?5 4 Fo:x: 226 863.6355

Memorandum

To: Dr. Steven Matthews, Superintendent

From:  Dr. Korie Wilson-Crawford, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources
Date:  July 15,2024

Subject: Special Policy Update

With the Policy Committee’s approval, the following special 2024 NEOLA policy updates will be brought to
the Board for a first reading on July 15, 2024.

Policy Description Revised New Replacement
Number
Po2264 Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in X
Education Programs or Activities
P02266 Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in X
Education Programs or Activities

Thank you for your continued support of the Policy Review Committee.



R()Ckford PUb"C SChOOIS Human Resources Department

Quality Community — Quality Schools Dr. Korie Wilson-Crawford, Assistant Superintendent

350 N. Main Street - Rockford, M| 49341
Together Building a Tradition of Excellence Phone: 61 6??63.(22%4 : FOaCx: ZQ 6.863.6355

Policy Committee Meeting

Special Update

Date: July 9, 2024

Time: 9:30 AM

Location: Administration Building
1. Welcome

2. Special Policy Discussion
3. Other Questions

4. Adjournment



Rockford Public Schools

Quality Community — Quality Schools
Together Building a Tradition of Excellence

RPS Board of Education Policy Committee
July 9, 2024
Meeting Location: Administration Building ~ Meeting Time: 9:30 a.m.

Attendance: Dr. Korie Wilson-Crawford, Jarrod Folsom, Tricia Anderson, Nick Reichenbach, and Erin
Wenger (recorder)

Nick Reichenbach called the meeting to order at 9:31 a.m.

Nick Reichenbach moved the approval of the agenda, and Jarrod supported.

Welcome
Dr. Korie Wilson-Crawford welcomed all in attendance and explained how the two policies will work
together based on the context of the complaint and when the allegation of potential conduct occured.

Title IX- Special Update
Topic Objective:

® P02266 (existing policy)- Special Update- Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in education
programs or activities (pre August 1, 2024)

e P02264 -NEW- Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in education programs or activities
(effective August 1, 2024

Details:

Policy 2266 has the addition to the board's policy and grievance procedure for responding to sexual
harassment alleged to have occurred prior to 8/1/2024. Effective August 1, 2024, this policy shall only
pertain to Reports or Formal Complaints of Sexual Harassment that are based on conduct alleged to have
occurred on or before July 31, 2024.

Dr. Korie-Wilson Crawford has a team of trained Title IX employees to help conduct an investigation.
Certain Title IX circumstances also allow the Title IX coordinator to conduct the investigation and make a
decision without the additional Title IX team.

Policy 2264 has shown us the language the district is recommended to adopt, what options it
recommends, and when this will take place on August 1, 2024.

Discussion was had around the regulatory definition of sex and the inclusion of gender identity as a
sex-based protection under Title IX.



Dr. Wilson-Crawford contacted NEOLA regarding the definition of an Eligible Student when a student
turns eighteen (18) and whether the student is eligible for Title IX protection.

Pregnancy-related conditions for students will be treated as any other medical conditions protected
under Title IX.

Title IX Coordinators have been assigned by the Board of Education to Dr. Korie Wilson-Crawford,
Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources, and Scott Beckman, Director of Security.

The Title IX Coordinator shall report directly to the Superintendent except when the Superintendent is a
party to a complaint. Under such circumstances, the Tile IX shall report directly to the Board’s Legal
Counsel.

The district will provide for an adequate, reliable, and impartial investigation of the complaint before
concluding the Investigation; the investigator may allow each party to propose/submit in writing relevant
questions that the party wants asked of any party or witness, and the decision maker will review.

Reviewed the options for student and employee discipline that has engaged in Title IX conduct and what
the disciplinary actions could be.

Discretion in Application- The Board retains discretion to interpret and apply this policy in a manner that
is not clearly unreasonable, even if the Board’s interpretation or application differs from the
interpretation of any specific complaint and/or respondent.

Committee Member Questions and Other Items:

President Folsom asked about the Statute of Limitations on Title IX complaints. Dr. Wilson-Crawford
explained that the Statute of Limitations variables for complaints of this nature. The goal of Title IX is to
ensure educational access for all students, regardless of sex (as defined in the regulations).

The committee discussed the changing nature of the regulatory requirements for Title IX and

These policy recommendations will be presented as first reading on Jul 15, 2024 meeting and will be on
the August 12, 2024 meeting for second reading and approval.

The meeting was adjourned at 11:52 AM.



7/10/24, 9:29 AM BoardDocs® PL

Book Policy Manual

Section Ready for Board - TITLE IX

Title NONDISCRIMINATION ON THE BASIS OF SEX IN EDUCATION PROGRAMS OR
ACTIVITIES

Code po2264 NEW

Status

New Policy - Special Update - Title IX
2264 - NONDISCRIMINATION ON THE BASIS OF SEX IN EDUCATION PROGRAMS OR ACTIVITIES

This policy pertains to sex discrimination, including sex-based harassment, which occurs on or after August 1, 2024.
Allegations of sex-based harassment, that occur on or before July 31, 2024, shall be addressed pursuant to Policy 2266 and
AG 2266. Throughout this policy, unless expressly stated otherwise, reference to “Title IX” includes and incorporates the
2024 Title IX regulations (also known as the “2024 Final Rule”). The Title IX regulations are found at 34 CFR Part 106.
References solely to Title IX (20 U.S.C. §§ 1681 — 1688) are denoted as “Title IX (Statute).” In this policy, unless the
context otherwise requires, words importing the singular include the plural and vice versa.

NONDISCRIMINATION
Overview:

The Board of Education of the Rockford Public School District (hereinafter referred to as “the Board”) does not discriminate
on the basis of sex and prohibits sex discrimination in any education program or activity that it operates, as required by
Title IX, including in admission and employment.

Discrimination on the basis of sex includes discrimination on the basis of sex stereotypes, sex characteristics, pregnancy or
related conditions, sexual orientation, and gender identity.

The Board is committed to maintaining an education and work environment that is free from sex discrimination (including
sex-based harassment), responding promptly and effectively when it has knowledge of conduct that reasonably may
constitute sex discrimination, and addressing sex discrimination in its education program or activity. Persons who commit
sex-based harassment are subject to the full range of disciplinary sanctions set forth in this policy. The Board will provide
persons who have experienced sex-based harassment ongoing remedies as reasonably necessary to restore or preserve
access to the District’s education program or activity.

KEY DEFINITIONS

Words used in this policy shall have those meanings specified herein; words not defined herein shall be construed according
to their plain and ordinary meanings.

Complainant means:

A. a student or employee who is alleged to have been subjected to conduct that could constitute sex discrimination
under Title IX; or

B. a person other than a student or employee who is alleged to have been subjected to conduct that could constitute
sex discrimination under Title IX and who was participating or attempting to participate in the District’s education

program or activity at the time of the alleged sex discrimination.

Complaint means: an oral or written request to the District that objectively can be understood as a request for the District
to investigate and make a determination about alleged discrimination under Title IX.

Day(s): Unless expressly stated otherwise, the term “day” or “days” as used in this policy means business day(s) (i.e., a
day(s) that the Board office is open for normal operating hours, Monday - Friday, excluding State-recognized holidays).

https://go.boarddocs.com/milrocf/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 116



7/10/24, 9:29 AM BoardDocs® PL
Disciplinary sanctions means: consequences imposed on a respondent following a determination under Title IX that the
respondent violated the Board’s prohibition on sex discrimination.
Education program or activity refers to: all the District’s operations including, but not limited to, in-person and
online/remote educational instruction, employment, extracurricular activities, athletics, performances, and community
engagement and outreach programs. The term applies to all activity that occurs on school grounds or on other property
owned or occupied by the Board. It also includes events and circumstances that take place off school property/grounds but

over which the District asserts disciplinary authority.

Eligible Student means: a student who has reached eighteen (18) years of age or is attending an institution of
postsecondary education.

Exculpatory evidence means: evidence that is favorable to a respondent because it helps excuse, justify, or absolve a
respondent of alleged wrongdoing and tends to establish a respondent did not engage in sex discrimination.

Inculpatory evidence means: evidence that links a respondent to alleged wrongdoing and tends to establish a respondent
engaged in sex discrimination (i.e., has culpability).

Parental status means: the status of a person who, with respect to another person who is under the age of eighteen (18)
or who is eighteen (18) or older but is incapable of self-care because of a physical or mental disability, is:

A. a biological parent;

B. an adoptive parent;

C. a foster parent;

D. a stepparent;

E. a legal custodian or guardian;

F. in loco parentis with respect to such a person; or

G. actively seeking legal custody, guardianship, visitation, or adoption of such a person.
Party means: a complainant or respondent.
Peer retaliation means: retaliation by a student against another student.
Pregnancy or related conditions means:

A. pregnancy, childbirth, termination of pregnancy, or lactation;

B. medical conditions related to pregnancy, childbirth, termination of pregnancy, or lactation; or

C. recovery from pregnancy, childbirth, termination of pregnancy, lactation, or related medical conditions.
Relevant means: related to the allegations of sex discrimination under investigation as part of the Board’s grievance
procedures. Questions are relevant when they seek evidence that may aid in showing whether the alleged sex
discrimination occurred, and evidence is relevant when it may aid a decisionmaker in determining whether the alleged sex
discrimination occurred.
Remedies means: measures provided, as appropriate, to a complainant or any other person the District identifies as
having had their equal access to the District’s education program or activity limited or denied by sex discrimination. These
measures are provided to restore or preserve that person’s access to the District’s education program or activity after the
District determines that sex discrimination occurred.
Respondent means: a person who is alleged to have violated the Board’s prohibition on sex discrimination.
Retaliation means: intimidation, threats, coercion, or discrimination against any person by the District, a student, a Board

employee, or any other person authorized by the Board to provide aid, benefit, or service under the District’s education
program or activity, for the purpose of interfering with any right or privilege secured by Title IX, or because the person has

https://go.boarddocs.com/milrocf/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 2/16



7/10/24, 9:29 AM BoardDocs® PL

reported information, made a complaint, testified, assisted, or participated or refused to participate in any manner in an
investigation, proceeding, or hearing under the 2024 Title IX regulations.

Sex-based harassment prohibited under this policy and the 2024 Title IX regulations is a form of sex discrimination and
means sexual harassment and other harassment on the basis of sex — including on the basis of sex stereotypes, sex
characteristics, pregnancy or related conditions, sexual orientation, and gender identity — that is:

A. Quid pro quo harassment. An employee, agent, or other person authorized by the Board to provide an aid, benefit,
or service under the District’s education program or activity explicitly or impliedly conditioning the provision of such
an aid, benefit, or service on a person’s participation in unwelcome sexual conduct.

OR

B. Hostile environment harassment. Unwelcome sex-based conduct that, based on the totality of the circumstances, is
subjectively and objectively offensive and is so severe or pervasive that it limits or denies a person’s ability to
participate in or benefit from the District’s education program or activity (i.e., creates a hostile environment).
Whether a hostile environment has been created is a fact-specific inquiry that includes consideration of the

following:

1. the degree to which the conduct affected the complainant’s ability to access the District’s education program
or activity;

2. the type, frequency, and duration of the conduct;

3. the parties’ ages, roles within the District’s education program or activity, previous interactions, and other
factors about each party that may be relevant to evaluating the effects of the conduct;

4. the location of the conduct and the context in which the conduct occurred; and
5. other sex-based harassment in the District’s education program or activity.
OR
C. Specific offenses.

1. Sexual assault meaning an offense classified as a forcible or nonforcible sex offense under the uniform crime
reporting system of the Federal Bureau of Investigation.

2. Dating violence meaning violence committed by a person:
a. who is or has been in a social relationship of a romantic or intimate nature with the victim; and

b. where the existence of such a relationship shall be determined based on a consideration of the
following factors:

1. the length of the relationship;

2. the type of relationship; and

3. the frequency of interaction between the persons involved in the relationship.
3. Domestic violence meaning felony or misdemeanor crimes committed by a person who:

a. is a current or former spouse or intimate partner of the victim under the family or domestic violence
laws of the jurisdiction in which the District is located, or a person similarly situated to a spouse of the
victim;

b. is cohabitating, or has cohabitated, with the victim as a spouse or intimate partner;

C. shares a child in common with the victim; or

d. commits acts against a youth or adult victim who is protected from those acts under the family or

domestic violence laws of the applicable jurisdiction.

https://go.boarddocs.com/milrocf/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 3/16



7/10/24, 9:29 AM BoardDocs® PL

4. Stalking meaning engaging in a course of conduct directed at a specific person that would cause a reasonable
person to:

a. fear for the person’s safety or the safety of others; or
b. suffer substantial emotional distress.

Student means: a person eligible to enroll in, attend, or participate in an elementary (including preschool) or secondary
school in the District and who is enrolled in, attending, or participating in, or is seeking/attempting to enroll in, attend, or
participate, in the District’s education program or activity.

Student with a disability means: a student who is an individual with a disability as defined under Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (“Section 504"), or a child with a disability as defined under the Individuals with
Disabilities Education Improvement Act ("IDEA").

Supportive measures means: individualized measures offered as appropriate, as reasonably available, without
unreasonably burdening a complainant or respondent, not for punitive or disciplinary reasons, and without fee or charge to
the complainant or respondent to:

A. restore or preserve that party’s access to the District’s education program or activity, including measures that are
designed to protect the safety of the parties or the District’s educational environment; or

B. provide support during the Board’s grievance procedures or an informal resolution process.
Parental, Family, or Marital Status

The Board will not adopt or apply any policy, practice, or procedure concerning a student’s current, potential, or past
parental, family, or marital status that treats such student differently on the basis of sex.

Pregnancy or Related Conditions
Students:

The Board prohibits discrimination in its education program or activity against any student based on the student’s current,
potential, or past pregnancy or related conditions. A student who is pregnant or experiencing related conditions shall
receive comparable treatment to those with temporary medical conditions. In other words, to the extent not otherwise
addressed above, the Board will treat pregnancy or related conditions in the same manner and under the same policies as
any other medical condition with respect to any medical or hospital benefit, service, plan, or policy the Board administers,
operates, offers, or participates in with respect to students admitted to the District’s education program or activity.

The District will not require a student who is pregnant or has related conditions to provide certification from a healthcare
provider or any other person that the student is physically able to participate in the District’s class, program, or
extracurricular activity unless:

A. the certified level of physical ability or health is necessary for participation in the class, program, or extracurricular
activity;

B. the District requires such certification of all students participating in the class, program, or extracurricular activity;
and

C. the information obtained is not used as a basis for discrimination prohibited by Title IX or this Policy.
District’s Responsibilities with Respect to a Student’s Pregnancy or Related Conditions

When a Board employee is informed of a student’s pregnancy or related conditions by the student or a person who has a
legal right to act on behalf of the student, the employee shall promptly provide that person with the Title IX Coordinator’s
contact information and inform that person that the Title IX Coordinator can coordinate specific actions to prevent sex
discrimination and ensure the student’s equal access to the District’s education program or activity, unless the employee
reasonably believes the Title IX Coordinator has already been notified.

Once a student, or a person who has a legal right to act on behalf of the student, notifies the Title IX Coordinator of the

student’s pregnancy or related conditions, the Title IX Coordinator shall promptly take the following specific actions to
effectively prevent sex discrimination and ensure equal access to the District’s education program or activity:

https://go.boarddocs.com/milrocf/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 4/16



7/10/24, 9:29 AM BoardDocs® PL
A. Inform the student and, if applicable, the person who notified the Title IX Coordinator of the District’s obligations to:
1. prohibit sex discrimination under this policy, including sex-based harassment;

2. provide the student with the option of reasonable modifications to the Board’s policies, practices, or
procedures because of pregnancy or related conditions;

3. allow access, on a voluntary basis, to any separate and comparable portion of the District’s education
program or activity;

4. allow a voluntary leave of absence;
5. provide lactation space; and

6. maintain grievance procedures that provide for the prompt and equitable resolution of complaints of sex
discrimination, including sex-based harassment.

B. Provide the student with voluntary reasonable modifications to the Board’s policies, practices, or procedures because
of pregnancy or related conditions.

C. Allow the student to take a voluntary leave of absence from the District’s education program or activity to cover, at
minimum, the period of time deemed medically necessary by the student’s licensed healthcare provider. To the
extent that a Board maintains a leave policy for students that allows a greater period of time than the medically
necessary period, the Board shall permit the student to take leave under that policy instead if the student so
chooses. When the student returns to the District’s education program or activity, the student will be reinstated to
the academic status and, as practicable, to the extracurricular status that the student held when the leave began.

D. Provide lactation space, which must be a space other than a bathroom, that is clean, shielded from view, free from
intrusion from others, and may be used by a student for expressing breast milk or breastfeeding as needed.

Employees:

The Board will not adopt or implement any policy, practice, or procedure, or take any employment action, on the basis of
sex:

A. concerning the current, potential, or past parental, family, or marital status of an employee or applicant for
employment, which treats persons differently; or

B. that is based upon whether an employee or applicant for employment is the head of household or principal wage
earner in such employee’s or applicant’s family unit.

The Board also will not make a pre-employment inquiry as to the marital status of an applicant for employment, including
whether such applicant is a “Miss or Mrs.”

Similarly, the Board will treat pregnancy or related conditions as any other temporary medical conditions for all job-related
purposes, including commencement, duration, and extensions of leave; payment of disability income; accrual of seniority
and any other benefit or service; and reinstatement; and under any fringe benefit offered to employees by virtue of
employment.

If an employee has insufficient leave or accrued employment time to qualify for leave under the Board’s leave policy, the
Board will treat pregnancy or related conditions as a justification for a voluntary leave of absence without pay for a
reasonable period of time, at the conclusion of which the employee shall be reinstated to the status held when the leave
began or to a comparable position, without decrease in rate of compensation or loss of promotional opportunities, or any
other right or privilege of employment.

The Board will provide reasonable break time for an employee to express breast milk or breastfeed as needed and will
provide the employee with access to a lactation space, which must be a space other than a bathroom that is clean, shielded
from view, free from intrusion from others, and may be used by an employee for expressing breast milk or breastfeeding as
needed. See Board Policy 6700 — Fair Labor Standards Act.

TITLE IX COORDINATOR(S)

The Board designates and authorizes the following individual(s) to coordinate its efforts to comply with the Board’s
responsibilities under Title IX:

https://go.boarddocs.com/milrocf/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 5/16



7/10/24, 9:29 AM BoardDocs® PL

Dr. Korie Wilson-Crawford, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources
350 N. Main St Rockford, MI 49341
kwilsoncrawford@rockfordschools.org

616-863-6554

Scott Beckman, Director of Security_
350 N. Main St. Rockford, MI 49341
sbeckman@rockfordschools.org

616-863-6320

The Board designates Dr. Korie Wilson-Crawford as the coordinator who is ultimately responsible for oversight over the
Board’s compliance with its responsibilities under Title IX.

The Title IX Coordinator may delegate specific duties to one (1) or more designees.

The Title IX Coordinator shall report directly to the Superintendent except when the Superintendent is a party to a
complaint (i.e., either the complainant or the respondent). Under such circumstances, the Title IX Coordinator shall report
directly to the Board’s Legal Counsel until the matter in which the Superintendent is a party is concluded.

Questions about this policy and Policy 2266 and AG 2264 and AG 2266 should be directed to the Title IX Coordinator.

The Title IX Coordinator shall monitor the District’s education programs and activities for barriers to reporting information
about conduct that reasonably may constitute sex discrimination under Title IX, and take steps reasonably calculated to
address such barriers.

Notice of Nondiscrimination

The Superintendent shall provide a notice of nondiscrimination to students, parents, guardians, or other authorized legal
representatives of elementary and secondary students; employees; applicants for admission and employment; and all
unions and professional organizations holding collective bargaining or professional agreements with the Board. Specifically,
the Superintendent shall post the notice of discrimination on the District’s website and in each handbook, catalog,
announcement, bulletin, and application form that it makes available to the persons listed above, or which are otherwise
used in connection with the recruitment of students or employees.

GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES
Overview:

The Board adopts the following grievance procedures to provide for the prompt and equitable resolution of complaints made
by students, employees, or other individuals who are participating or attempting to participate in the District’s education
program or activity, or by the Title IX Coordinator, alleging any action that would be prohibited by Title IX.

These grievance procedures shall be used for all complaints of sex discrimination, including sex-based harassment,
involving conduct alleged to have occurred on or after August 1, 2024. These grievance procedures also may be used, at
the discretion of the Title IX Coordinator, to investigate, address, and remedy (as necessary) conduct alleged to have
occurred before August 1, 2024, that does not involve sex-based harassment, but some other form of sex discrimination
prohibited by Title IX (Statute) - e.g., claims of unequal athletic opportunities, admissions discrimination, discrimination in
courses or academic programs (i.e., excluding students from certain classes or programs based on their sex), pregnancy
discrimination, unequal treatment based on parental, family, or marital status, discrimination in employment (including in
hiring, promotion, and compensation), and retaliation. If the Title IX Coordinator elects not to use these grievances
procedures to investigate and resolve such claims, the Title IX Coordinator will still need to implement some procedures to
assess - in a prompt, effective, and equitable manner — whether Title IX (Statute) was violated, and, if it was, how best to
end the sex discrimination in the District’s education program or activity, prevent its recurrence, and remedy its effects.

https://go.boarddocs.com/milrocf/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 6/16



7/10/24, 9:29 AM BoardDocs® PL

Reports and Formal Complaints of “Sexual Harassment” (as defined in Policy 2266) involving conduct alleged to have
occurred prior to August 1, 2024, are subject to the grievance procedures outlined in Policy 2266.

Under all circumstances, the Title IX Coordinator shall offer and coordinate supportive measures, as appropriate, in
accordance with this policy , or Policy 2266 , if the Report or Formal Complaint involves “Sexual Harassment” alleged to
have occurred prior to August 1, 2024.

If the conduct giving rise to a report or complaint of sex discrimination is alleged to have occurred both before and after
August 1, 2024 (i.e., is part of a pattern of sex discrimination), the Title IX Coordinator shall determine whether to use the
grievance procedures contained in this policy or the grievance procedures contained in Policy 2266. The Title IX Coordinator
will notify, in writing, the parties of the determination and the rationale for it. Under no circumstances, however, will a party
be denied the due process to which the party is entitled based on the U.S. Department of Education-issued regulations in
effect at the time the conduct alleged to violate Title IX (Statute) took place. Nothing herein shall prevent the Title IX
Coordinator from using a hybrid grievance procedure that contains aspects of the grievance procedures contained in both
this policy and Policy 2266, so that the parties receive all of the due process to which they are entitled.

Complaints:

The following people may make a complaint of sex discrimination - i.e., request that the District investigate and make a
determination about whether sex discrimination as prohibited under Title IX occurred:

A. a “complainant,” which includes:

1. a student or employee of the District who is alleged to have been subjected to conduct that could constitute
sex discrimination under Title IX; or

2. a person other than a student or employee of the District who is alleged to have been subjected to conduct
that could constitute sex discrimination under Title IX at a time when that individual was participating or
attempting to participate in the District’s education program or activity;

B. a parent, guardian, or other authorized legal representative with the legal right to act on behalf of a complainant;
C. the District’s Title IX Coordinator.
A person is entitled to make a complaint of sex-based harassment only if they themselves are alleged to have been
subjected to the sex-based harassment, if they have a legal right to act on behalf of such person who was subjected to the

sex-based harassment, or if the Title IX Coordinator initiates a complaint consistent with the requirements of the 2024 Title
IX regulations.

With respect to complaints of sex discrimination other than sex-based harassment, in addition to the people listed above,
the following persons have a right to make a complaint:

A. any student or employee of the District; or

B. any person other than a student or employee who was participating or attempting to participate in the District’s
education program or activity at the time of the alleged sex discrimination.

The District may consolidate complaints of sex discrimination against more than one (1) respondent, or by more than one
(1) complainant against one (1) or more respondents, or by one (1) party against another party, when the allegations of
sex discrimination arise out of the same facts or circumstances. When more than one (1) complainant or more than one (1)
respondent is involved, references below to a party, complainant, or respondent include the plural, as applicable.

Basic Requirements:

The District will treat complainants and respondents equitably.

All persons involved with implementing the grievance procedures and any other aspects of Policy 2264, including the Title
IX Coordinator, the investigator, the decisionmaker, and the appeal decisionmaker, shall be free from any conflicts of
interest or bias for or against complainants or respondents generally or an individual complainant or respondent.

The Title IX Coordinator may serve simultaneously as an investigator and/or a decisionmaker.

https://go.boarddocs.com/milrocf/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 7116



7/10/24, 9:29 AM BoardDocs® PL

If the Title IX Coordinator does not intend to serve as the investigator and decisionmaker in a specific case, the Title IX
Coordinator shall designate one (1) or more administrators who are appropriately trained to serve in the role. Likewise, the
Title IX Coordinator shall appoint an appeal decisionmaker when an appeal is filed.

In circumstances when the Title IX Coordinator and trained administrators do not have time/capacity to serve, or are
prevented due to a conflict of interest, bias, or partiality, or other reasons that impair the Title IX Coordinator and other
trained administrators from serving as an investigator and/or decisionmaker in a specific case, the Title IX Coordinator
shall secure one (1) or more independent third parties to serve as the investigator and/or decisionmaker. Similarly, the
Title IX Coordinator has authority to secure an independent third party to serve as the appeal decisionmaker.

The District presumes that the respondent is not responsible for the alleged sex discrimination until a determination is made
at the conclusion of its grievance procedures.

Under ordinary circumstances, the Board expects to complete the major stages of the grievance procedures within the
timeframe specified below:

A. Evaluation - The Title IX Coordinator will determine whether to dismiss a complaint or investigate it within fifteen
(15) days of receiving the complaint.

B. Investigation — The Title IX Coordinator, or designated investigator, shall ordinarily complete the investigation (i.e.,
collect relevant evidence that is not otherwise impermissible) within thirty (30) days of the Title IX Coordinator
determining the charges require investigation. If, however, the Title IX Coordinator, or designated investigator,
determines that the investigation is going to take longer, the Title IX Coordinator will so notify the parties and will
thereafter keep the parties informed of the status of the matter on a regular basis. Once the Title IX Coordinator, or
designated investigator, provides the parties with “access” to either the relevant and not otherwise impermissible
evidence and/or an accurate description of the evidence, the parties will have five (5) days to respond to the
evidence or the description of the evidence unless the Title IX Coordinator approves a party’s written request for
more time. If the Title IX Coordinator approves such a request, both parties will be afforded an equal amount of time
to submit their response.

C. Determination - After the parties either submit responses to the evidence/description of the evidence, or the
deadline for submitting such responses expires, the Title IX Coordinator, or designated decisionmaker, will consider
the relevant and otherwise not impermissible evidence and issue a determination as to whether sex discrimination
occurred. The determination shall be issued within ten (10) days of the deadline for the parties to submit responses
to the evidence/description of the evidence unless the Title IX Coordinator approves an extension of time, which
must be communicated in writing to the parties.

D. Appeal - A party filing an appeal of the Title IX Coordinator’s decision to dismiss a complaint must do so within five
(5) days of receiving the Dismissal.

The Title IX Coordinator, or the Superintendent if the Title IX Coordinator is the individual requesting an extension, may
approve reasonable extensions of the preceding timeframes on a case-by-case basis for good cause with notice to the
parties.

The District will take reasonable steps to protect the privacy of the parties and witnesses during its grievance procedures.
These steps will not restrict the ability of the parties to obtain and present evidence, including by speaking to witnesses;
consulting with their family members, confidential resources, or advisors; or otherwise preparing for or participating in the
grievance procedures. The parties shall not engage in retaliation, including against witnesses.

The Title IX Coordinator, or designated decisionmaker, shall objectively evaluate all evidence that is relevant and not
otherwise impermissible — including both inculpatory and exculpatory evidence. Credibility determinations shall not be
based on a person’s status as a complainant, respondent, or witness.

The following types of evidence, and questions seeking that evidence, are impermissible (i.e., will not be accessed or
considered, except by the District to determine whether one of the exceptions listed below applies; will not be disclosed;
and will not otherwise be used), regardless of whether they are relevant:

A. evidence that is protected under a privilege recognized by Federal or State law , unless the person to whom the
privilege or confidentiality is owed has voluntarily waived the privilege or confidentiality;

B. a party’s or witness’s records that are made or maintained by a physician, psychologist, or other recognized

professional or paraprofessional in connection with the provision of treatment to the party or witness unless the
District obtains that party’s or witness’s voluntary, written consent for use in its grievance procedures; and

https://go.boarddocs.com/milrocf/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 8/16



7/10/24, 9:29 AM BoardDocs® PL

C. evidence that relates to the complainant’s sexual interests or prior sexual conduct, unless evidence about the
complainant’s prior sexual conduct is offered to prove that someone other than the respondent committed the
alleged conduct or is evidence about specific incidents of the complainant’s prior sexual conduct with the respondent
that is offered to prove consent to the alleged sex-based harassment. The fact of prior consensual sexual conduct
between the complainant and respondent shall not by itself demonstrate or imply the complainant’s consent to the
alleged sex-based harassment or preclude a determination that sex-based harassment occurred.

Notice of Allegations:
Upon initiation of the Board’s grievance procedures, the Title IX Coordinator shall notify the parties of the following:
A. the Board'’s Title IX grievance procedures and informal resolution process

B. sufficient information available at the time to allow the parties to respond to the allegations, including the identities
of the parties involved in the incident(s), the conduct alleged to constitute sex discrimination, and the date(s) and
location(s) of the alleged incident(s);

C. retaliation is prohibited; and

D. the parties are entitled to an equal opportunity to access the relevant and not otherwise impermissible evidence or
an accurate description of this evidence. If the Title IX Coordinator, or designated investigator, provides the parties
with a description of the evidence, any party may request access to the relevant and not otherwise impermissible
evidence. The Title IX Coordinator will provide the requesting party with the relevant and not otherwise
impermissible evidence in a timely manner.

Should the Title IX Coordinator decide, at any point, to investigate allegations that are materially beyond the scope of the
initial written notice, the Title IX Coordinator will provide a supplemental written notice describing the additional allegations
to be investigated.

Dismissal of a Complaint:
The Title IX Coordinator may dismiss a complaint of sex discrimination if:
A. the District is unable to identify the respondent after taking reasonable steps to do so;
B. the respondent is not participating in the District’s education program or activity and is not employed by the Board;

C. the complainant voluntarily withdraws any or all the allegations in the complaint, the Title IX Coordinator declines to
initiate a complaint, and the District determines that, without the complainant’s withdrawn allegations, the conduct
that remains alleged in the complaint, if any, would not constitute sex discrimination under Title IX even if proven;
or

D. the District determines the conduct alleged in the complaint, even if proven, would not constitute sex discrimination
under Title IX. Before dismissing the complaint, the Title IX Coordinator will make reasonable efforts to clarify the
allegations with the complainant.

Upon dismissal, the Title IX Coordinator will promptly notify the complainant of the basis for the dismissal. If the dismissal
occurs after the respondent has been notified of the allegations, then the Title IX Coordinator will also notify the respondent
of the dismissal and the basis for the dismissal promptly following notification to the complainant, or simultaneously if
notification is in writing.

The Title IX Coordinator will notify the complainant that a dismissal may be appealed and will provide the complainant with
an opportunity to appeal the dismissal of a complaint. If the dismissal occurs after the respondent has been notified of the
allegations, then the Title IX Coordinator will also notify the respondent that the dismissal may be appealed. Dismissals may
be appealed on the following bases:

A. procedural irregularity that would change the outcome;

B. new evidence that would change the outcome and that was not reasonably available when the dismissal was made;
and

C. the Title IX Coordinator, investigator, or decisionmaker had a conflict of interest or bias for or against complainants
or respondents generally or the individual complainant or respondent that would change the outcome.

https://go.boarddocs.com/milrocf/Board.nsf/Private?open&login#

9/16



7/10/24, 9:29 AM BoardDocs® PL

If the dismissal is appealed, the Title IX Coordinator will:

A. notify the parties of any appeal, including notice of the allegations, if notice was not previously provided to the
respondent;

B. implement appeal procedures equally for the parties;

C. ensure that the appeal decisionmaker did not take part in an investigation of the allegations or dismissal of the
complaint;

D. ensure that the appeal decisionmaker has been trained consistent with the 2024 Title IX regulations

E. provide the parties a reasonable and equal opportunity to make a statement in support of, or challenging, the
outcome; and

F. notify the parties of the result of the appeal and the rationale for the result.
When a complaint is dismissed, the Title IX Coordinator will, at a minimum:
A. offer supportive measures to the complainant as appropriate;

B. if the respondent has been notified of the allegations, offer supportive measures to the respondent as appropriate;
and

C. take other prompt and effective steps, as appropriate, to ensure that sex discrimination does not continue or recur
within the District’s education program or activity.

Informal Resolution Process:
In lieu of resolving a complaint through the Board’s Title IX grievance procedures, the parties may instead elect to
participate in an informal resolution process. The District will not offer an informal resolution to resolve a complaint that
includes allegations that an employee engaged in sex-based harassment of an elementary school or secondary school
student, or when such a process would conflict with Federal, State, or local law.
Adding Allegations and/or Consolidating Complaints:
If, in the course of an investigation, the District decides to investigate additional allegations of sex discrimination by the
respondent toward the complainant that are not included in the original Notice of Allegations provided or that are included
in a complaint that is consolidated, the Title IX Coordinator will notify the parties of the additional allegations.
Investigation:

The District will provide for an adequate, reliable, and impartial investigation of complaints.

The burden is on the District — not on the parties — to conduct an investigation that gathers sufficient evidence to
determine whether sex discrimination occurred.

The Title IX Coordinator, or the designated investigator and/or decisionmaker, will provide an equal opportunity for the
parties to present fact witnesses and other inculpatory and exculpatory evidence that are relevant and not otherwise

impermissible.

The Title IX Coordinator, or the designated investigator and/or decisionmaker, will review all evidence gathered through the
investigation and determine what evidence is relevant and what evidence is impermissible regardless of relevance.

The District will provide each party with an equal opportunity to access the evidence that is relevant to the allegations of
sex discrimination and not otherwise impermissible, in the following manner:

A. the District will provide the parties with an equal opportunity to access either the relevant and not otherwise
impermissible evidence, or an accurate description of this evidence;

If the Title IX Coordinator, or designated investigator, provides a description of the evidence, the Title IX Coordinator,

https://go.boarddocs.com/milrocf/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 10/16



7/10/24, 9:29 AM BoardDocs® PL

or designated investigator, will provide the parties with an equal opportunity to access the relevant and not
otherwise impermissible evidence upon the request of any party.

B. the District will provide a reasonable opportunity to the parties to respond to the evidence or the accurate
description of the evidence; and

C. the District will take reasonable steps to prevent and address the parties’ unauthorized disclosure of information and
evidence obtained solely through the grievance procedures. Disclosures of such information and evidence for
purposes of administrative proceedings or litigation related to the complaint of sex discrimination are authorized.

Questioning the Parties and Witnesses:

If the investigator and decisionmaker are two (2) separate individuals, the decisionmaker will have an opportunity to
question the parties and witnesses to adequately assess a party’s or witness’s credibility to the extent credibility is both in
dispute and relevant to evaluating one (1) or more allegations of sex discrimination.

If the investigator and the decisionmaker are the same person, the decisionmaker will have an opportunity to question the
parties and witnesses in individual meetings as part of the investigation.

Before concluding the Investigation, the investigator may allow each party to propose/submit in writing relevant
questions that the party wants asked of any party or witness and

the investigator will review any questions submitted by the parties and ask those questions of the specific party or witness
that the investigator determines — in the investigator’s sole discretion — may lead to probative evidence that will assist the
decisionmaker in determining whether sex discrimination occurred. The investigator’s decision to ask or not ask a specific
question proposed by a party is not subject to review. Any questions asked must be relevant and not otherwise
impermissible.

After the parties have an opportunity to review the relevant and not otherwise impermissible evidence, or an accurate
description of this evidence, the decisionmaker may allow each party to propose/submit in writing relevant questions that
the party wants asked of any party or witness and the decisionmaker will review any relevant and not otherwise
impermissible questions submitted by the parties and ask those questions of the specific party or witness that the
decisionmaker determines, in the decisionmaker’s sole discretion, may lead to probative evidence that will assist the
decisionmaker in determining whether sex discrimination occurred. The decisionmaker’s decision to ask or not ask a specific
question proposed by a party is not subject to review. Any questions asked must be relevant and not otherwise
impermissible.

Determination of Whether Sex Discrimination Occurred:

Following an investigation and evaluation of all relevant and not otherwise impermissible evidence, the Title IX Coordinator
or designated decisionmaker will:

A. Use the preponderance of the evidence standard of proof to determine whether sex discrimination occurred.
This standard of proof requires the decisionmaker to evaluate relevant and not otherwise impermissible evidence for
its persuasiveness. If the decisionmaker, applying the applicable standard, is not persuaded by the relevant and not
otherwise impermissible evidence that sex discrimination occurred, regardless of the quantity of the evidence, the
decisionmaker will not determine that sex discrimination occurred.

B. Notify the parties, in writing, of the determination whether sex discrimination occurred under Title IX including the
rationale for such determination, and the procedures and permissible bases for the complainant and respondent to
appeal.

C. Not impose discipline on a respondent for sex discrimination prohibited by Title IX unless there is a determination at
the conclusion of the grievance procedures that the respondent engaged in prohibited sex discrimination.

D. If there is a determination that sex discrimination occurred, the Title IX Coordinator will, as appropriate:
1. coordinate the provision and implementation of remedies to a complainant and other people the District
identifies as having had equal access to the District’s education program or activity limited or denied by sex

discrimination;

2. coordinate the imposition of any disciplinary sanctions on a respondent, including notification to the
complainant of any such disciplinary sanctions; and

https://go.boarddocs.com/milrocf/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 11/16



7/10/24, 9:29 AM BoardDocs® PL

3. take other appropriate prompt and effective steps to ensure that sex discrimination does not continue or
recur within the District’s education program or activity.

E. Comply with the grievance procedures before the imposition of any disciplinary sanctions against a respondent; and

F. Not discipline a party, witness, or others participating in the grievance procedures for making a false statement or
for engaging in consensual sexual conduct based solely on the determination of whether sex discrimination occurred.

Appeal of Determinations:

If a party disagrees with the decisionmaker’s determination as to whether sex discrimination occurred, the party may file an
appeal. Appeals must be submitted, in writing, within five (5) days of the appealing party’s receipt of the Determination.

A party may appeal a Determination on the following bases:
A. procedural irregularity that would change the outcome;

B. new evidence that would change the outcome and that was not reasonably available when the Determination was
made; and

C. the Title IX Coordinator, investigator, or decisionmaker had a conflict of interest or bias for or against complainants
or respondents generally or the individual complainant or respondent that would change the outcome.

The complainant may not challenge the ultimate disciplinary sanction/consequence that is imposed.
If a party appeals the decisionmaker’s determination, the Title IX Coordinator will:

A. notify the parties of any appeal;

B. implement appeal procedures equally for the parties;

C. designate an appeal decisionmaker, who will be a person who did not conduct the Investigation or render the
Determination, and is appropriately trained;
1. provide the parties a reasonable and equal opportunity to make a statement in support of, or challenging, the
decisionmaker’s determination;

2. provide the appeal decisionmaker with the relevant and not otherwise impermissible evidence along with the
accurate description of the relevant evidence (if one was prepared and shared with the parties), any
responses the parties submitted to the investigator related to the evidence and/or the description of the
evidence (if one was prepared), and the decisionmaker’s determination; and

3. notify the parties, in writing, of the result of the appeal and the appeal decisionmaker’s rationale for the
outcome.

When a party files an appeal, the party must set forth the reason for the appeal, and the other party will have five (5) days
to provide the appeal decisionmaker with a statement in support of their position. Once the decisionmaker receives the
statement (or the deadline for filing such a statement expires), the appeal decisionmaker will have ten (10) days to issue a
decision on the appeal.

No new or additional evidence may be submitted during the appeal process.

The appeal decisionmaker shall determine the outcome of the appeal based on the appeal decisionmaker’s independent
review of the record (i.e., the relevant and not otherwise impermissible evidence, the feedback the parties provided to the
investigator and/or decisionmaker based on their review of the relevant evidence and any description of the relevant
evidence that was prepared and shared with the parties, and the decisionmaker’s written determination) and the appeal
decisionmaker’s application of the law and Board policy to the facts in the record. The appeal decisionmaker must give due
deference and due weight to the decisionmaker’s factual findings and credibility determinations and should not overturn
them unless non-testimonial extrinsic evidence in the record justifies a contrary conclusion or unless the record read in its
entirety compels a contrary conclusion. Generally, the appeal decisionmaker is expected to uphold the decisionmaker’s

https://go.boarddocs.com/milrocf/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 12/16



7/10/24, 9:29 AM BoardDocs® PL

determination unless the appeal decisionmaker determines the decisionmaker’s determination is unlawful, unreasonable, or
against the manifest weight of the evidence. Every reasonable presumption must be made in favor of the decisionmaker’s
determination.

The appeal decisionmaker shall notify the Title IX Coordinator, in writing, of the result of the appeal and the
rationale for the outcome. The Title IX Coordinator will then simultaneously notify the parties, in writing, of the
result of the appeal and the appeal decisionmaker’s rationale for the outcome.

Supportive Measures:

The District will offer and coordinate supportive measures as appropriate for the complainant and/or respondent to restore
or preserve that person’s access to the District’s education program or activity or provide support during the Board'’s
grievance procedures or during the informal resolution process. For allegations of sex discrimination other than sex-based
harassment or retaliation, the District’s provision of support measures does not require the District, Board employees, or
any other person authorized to provide aid, benefit, or service on the District’s behalf to alter the alleged discriminatory
conduct for the purpose of providing a supportive measure.

The Title IX Coordinator shall determine appropriate supportive measures on a case-by-case basis. Supportive measures
may vary depending on what the Title IX Coordinator deems to be reasonably available. Supportive measures may include,
but are not limited to: counseling; extensions of deadlines or other course-related adjustments; school/campus escort
services; increased security and monitoring of certain areas of the campus (including school buildings and facilities);
restrictions on contact between the parties; leaves of absence; changes in class, work, or extracurricular or any other
activity, regardless of whether there is or is not a comparable alternative; training and education programs related to sex-
based harassment; referral to Employee Assistance Program; and other similar measures.

Supportive measures must not unreasonably burden either party and must be designed to protect the safety of the parties
and/or the District’s educational environment, or to provide support during the Board’s grievance procedures or the informal
resolution process.

The District will not impose such measures for punitive or disciplinary reasons.

The Title IX Coordinator may, as appropriate, modify or terminate supportive measures at the conclusion of the grievance
procedures, or at the conclusion of the informal resolution process, or the District may continue them beyond that point.

The District will provide a complainant or respondent with a timely opportunity to seek, from an appropriate and impartial
employee, modification or reversal of the Title IX Coordinator’s decision to provide, deny, modify, or terminate supportive
measures applicable to them. The impartial employee must be someone other than the employee who made the challenged
decision and must have authority to modify or reverse the decision if the impartial employee determines that the decision to
provide, deny, modify, or terminate the supportive measure was inconsistent with the definition of supportive measures as
set forth in the Key Definitions section of this policy.

A party may seek additional modification or termination of a supportive measure applicable to them if circumstances change
materially.

The District will not disclose information about any supportive measures to persons other than the person to whom they
apply, including informing one party of supportive measures provided to another party, unless necessary to provide the
supportive measure or restore or preserve a party’s access to the District’s education program or activity, or as otherwise
permitted pursuant to the 2024 Title IX regulations.

If the complainant or respondent is an elementary or secondary student with a disability, the Title IX Coordinator shall
consult with one (1) or more members, as appropriate, of the student’s Individualized Education Program (IEP) team, if
any, or one (1) or more members, as appropriate, of the student’s Section 504 team, if any, to determine how to comply
with the requirements of the IDEA and/or Section 504, in the implementation of supportive measures.

The Superintendent may place an employee respondent on administrative leave from employment responsibilities during
the pendency of the Board’s grievance procedures.

Disciplinary Sanctions and Remedies:

Following a determination that sex-based harassment occurred, the District may impose disciplinary sanctions, which may
include:

For Students

https://go.boarddocs.com/milrocf/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 13/16



7/10/24, 9:29 AM BoardDocs® PL
A. Informal Discipline
1. changing of seating or location;
2. pre-school, lunchtime, after-school detention;
3. in-school discipline;
4. Saturday school.
B. Formal Discipline
1. suspension of bus riding/transportation privileges;
2. removal from co-curricular and/or extracurricular activity(ies), including athletics;
3. emergency removal;
4. suspension for up to ten (10) school days;

5. expulsion for up to eighty (80) school days or the number of school days remaining in a semester, whichever
is greater;

6. expulsion for up to one (1) year;
7. permanent exclusion; and
8. any other sanction authorized by the Student Code of Conduct.
For Employees
A. oral or written warning;
B. written reprimands;
C. required counseling;
D. required training or education;

E. demotion;
F. suspension without pay;

G. termination and any other sanction authorized by any applicable Board Policy, Employee/Administrator Handbook,
and/or collective bargaining agreement.

The District may also provide remedies which may include disciplinary sanctions/consequences. The Title IX Coordinator will
notify the Superintendent of the recommended remedies, so an authorized administrator can consider the recommendation
and implement appropriate remedies in compliance with applicable due process procedures, whether statutory or
contractual.

With respect to student respondents, the Title IX Coordinator will notify the Superintendent of the recommended remedies
(including disciplinary sanctions/consequences), so an authorized administrator can consider the recommendation(s) and
implement an appropriate remedy(ies) in compliance with Policy 5600 — Student Discipline, Policy 5605 —
Suspension/Expulsion of Students with Disabilities, Policy 5610 — Emergency Removal, Suspension, Expulsion, and
Permanent Exclusion of Students, Policy 5610.02 — In-School Discipline, and Policy 5611 — Due Process Rights. Discipline of
a student respondent must comply with the applicable provisions of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement
Act (IDEA) and/or Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1972 (“Section 504"), and their respective implementing
regulations.

Discipline of an employee will be implemented in accordance with Federal and State law, Board policy, and applicable
provisions of any relevant collective bargaining agreement.

https://go.boarddocs.com/milrocf/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 14/16



7/10/24, 9:29 AM BoardDocs® PL
Retaliation

Neither the Board nor any other person may intimidate, threaten, coerce, or discriminate against any individual for the
purpose of interfering with any right or privilege secured by Title IX or this policy, or because the individual made a report
or complaint, testified, assisted, or participated or refused to participate in any manner in an investigation, proceeding, or
hearing under this policy. Intimidation, threats, coercion, or discrimination, including initiating a disciplinary process against
a person for a code of conduct violation that does not involve sex discrimination but arises out of the same facts and
circumstances as a complaint or information reported about possible sex discrimination, for the purpose of interfering with
the exercise of any right or privilege secured by Title IX constitutes retaliation. Peer retaliation is also prohibited. Retaliation
against a person for making a complaint or participating in an investigation is a serious violation of this policy that can
result in the imposition of disciplinary sanctions/consequences and/or other appropriate remedies.

Complaints alleging retaliation may be filed according to the grievance procedures set forth above. The District shall initiate
its grievance procedures upon receiving any complaint alleging retaliation.

The exercise of rights protected under the First Amendment of the United States Constitution does not constitute retaliation
prohibited under this policy.

Charging an individual with a code of conduct violation for making a materially false statement in bad faith in the course of
a grievance proceeding under this policy shall not constitute retaliation, provided, however, that a determination that sex
discrimination occurred, alone, is not sufficient to conclude that any party made a materially false statement in bad faith.

Confidentiality

The District will keep confidential the identity of any individual who has made a complaint of sex discrimination, any
complainant, any individual who has been reported to be the perpetrator of sex discrimination, any respondent, and any
witness, except as may be permitted by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act ("FERPA"), 20 U.S.C. 1232g, or
FERPA regulations, 34 C.F.R. part 99, or as required by law, or to carry out the purposes of 34 C.F.R. part 106, including the
conduct of any investigation, hearing, or judicial proceeding arising thereunder (i.e., the District’s obligation to maintain
confidentiality shall not impair or otherwise affect the complainant’s and respondent’s receipt of the information to which
they are entitled related to the investigation and determination of whether sex discrimination occurred).

Application of the First Amendment

The Board will construe and apply this policy consistent with the First Amendment to the U.S. Constitution . In no case will
a respondent be found to have committed sex discrimination based on expressive conduct that is protected by the First
Amendment

Training

All employees, investigators, decisionmakers, facilitators of informal resolution process, the Title IX Coordinator(s) and
designees, and other persons who are responsible for implementing the Board’s grievance procedures or have the authority
to modify or terminate supportive measures shall receive training related to their duties under Title IX and this Policy. The
training shall be provided promptly upon hiring or change of position that alters their duties under Title IX or this policy, and
annually thereafter. The training shall not rely on sex stereotypes.

Training materials must be made available for inspection upon request by members of the public.

Recordkeeping

The District shall maintain for a period of seven (7) calendar years the following records:

A. for each complaint of sex discrimination, records documenting the informal resolution process and/or the grievance
procedures followed and the resulting outcome;

B. for each notification that the Title IX Coordinator receives of information about conduct that reasonably may
constitute sex discrimination under Title IX, including notifications under 34 C.F.R. § 106.44(c)(1) or (2), records
documenting the actions the District took to meet its obligations under 34 C.F.R. §106.44; and

C. all materials used to provide the required training.

Outside Appointments, Dual Appointments, and Delegations

https://go.boarddocs.com/milrocf/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 15/16



7/10/24, 9:29 AM BoardDocs® PL

The Board retains discretion to appoint suitably qualified persons who are not Board employees to fulfill any function of the
Board under this policy including, but not limited to, Title IX Coordinator, investigator, decisionmaker, appeal decisionmaker,
or facilitator of the informal resolution process.

The Board also retains discretion to appoint two (2) or more persons to jointly fulfill the role of Title IX Coordinator,
investigator, decisionmaker, appeal decisionmaker, and facilitator of the informal resolution process.

The Superintendent may delegate functions assigned to a specific Board employee under this policy including, but not
limited to, the functions assigned to the Title IX Coordinator, investigator, decisionmaker, appeal decisionmaker, and
facilitator of the informal resolution process to any suitably qualified individual and such delegation may be rescinded by the
Superintendent at any time.

Discretion in Application

The Board retains discretion to interpret and apply this policy in a manner that is not clearly unreasonable, even if the
Board’s interpretation or application differs from the interpretation of any specific complainant and/or respondent.

Despite the Board’s reasonable efforts to anticipate all eventualities in drafting this policy, it is possible unanticipated or
extraordinary circumstances may not be specifically or reasonably addressed by the express policy language, in which case
the Board retains discretion to respond to the unanticipated or extraordinary circumstance in a way that is not clearly
unreasonable.

The provisions of this policy are not contractual in nature, whether in their own right or as part of any other express or
implied contract. Accordingly, the Board retains discretion to revise this policy at any time, and for any reason. The Board
may apply policy revisions to an active case provided that doing so is not clearly unreasonable.

© Neola 2024

Legal

20 U.S.C. 1092(F)(6)(A)(V)
20 U.S.C. 1232g

20 U.S.C. 1400 et seq., The Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act of 2004
(IDEIA)

20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq., Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (Title IX)
29 C.F.R. Part 1636

34 C.R.R. Part 99

34 C.F.R. Part 106

34 U.S.C. 12291(a)(8)

34 U.S.C. 12291(a)(10)

34 U.S.C. 12291(a)(30)

42 U.S.C. 1983

42 U.S.C. 2000c et seq., Title IV of the Civil Rights Act of 1964
42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq.

42 U.S.C. 2000e et seq.

42 U.S.C. 2000gg

OCR's Revised Sexual Harassment Guidance (2001)

https://go.boarddocs.com/milrocf/Board.nsf/Private?open&login# 16/16



6/28/24, 10:40 AM BoardDocs® PL

Book Policy Manual

Section 2000 Program

Title Copy of Copy of NONDISCRIMINATION ON THE BASIS OF SEX IN EDUCATION
PROGRAMS OR ACTIVITIES

Code p02266

Status

Adopted April 26, 2021

Last Revised December 13, 2021

2266 - NONDISCRIMINATION ON THE BASIS OF SEX IN EDUCATION PROGRAMS OR ACTIVITIES

(The Board’s Policy and Grievance Procedures for Responding to Sexual Harassment Alleged to Have Occurred
Prior to 8/1/2024)

Effective August 1, 2024, this policy shall only pertain to Reports or Formal Complaints of Sexual Harassment that are
based on conduct alleged to have occurred on or before July 31, 2024

Introduction

The Board of Education of the Rockford Public School District (hereinafter referred to as “the Board” or “the District”) does
not discriminate on the basis of sex (including sexual orientation or gender identity), in its education programs or activities,
and is required by Title IX of the Education Amendments Act of 1972, and its implementing regulations, not to discriminate
in such a manner. The requirement not to discriminate in its education program or activity extends to admission and
employment. The Board is committed to maintaining an education and work environment that is free from discrimination
based on sex, including sexual harassment.

The Board prohibits Sexual Harassment that occurs within its education programs and activities. When the District has
actual knowledge of Sexual Harassment in its education program or activity against a person in the United States, it shall
promptly respond in a manner that is not deliberately indifferent.

Pursuant to its Title IX obligations, the Board is committed to eliminating Sexual Harassment and will take appropriate
action when an individual is determined responsible for violating this policy. Board employees, students, third-party vendors
and contractors, guests, and other members of the School District community who commit Sexual Harassment are subject
to the full range of disciplinary sanctions set forth in this policy. The Board will provide persons who have experienced
Sexual Harassment ongoing remedies as reasonably necessary to restore or preserve access to the District’s education
programs and activities.

Coverage

This policy applies to Sexual Harassment that occurs within the District’s education programs and activities and that is
committed by a member of the School District community or a Third Party.

This policy does not apply to Sexual Harassment that occurs off school grounds, in a private setting, and outside the scope
of the District’s education programs and activities; such Sexual Misconduct/Sexual Activity may be prohibited by the
Student Code of Conduct if committed by a student, or by Board policies and administrative guidelines, applicable State
and/or Federal laws, and/or Employee/Administrator Handbook(s) if committed by a Board employee.

Consistent with the U.S. Department of Education’s implementing regulations for Title IX, this policy does not apply to

Sexual Harassment that occurs outside the geographic boundaries of the United States, even if the Sexual Harassment
occurs in the District’s education programs or activities. Sexual Harassment that occurs outside the geographic boundaries

https://go.boarddocs.com/mi/rocf/Board.nsf/Public?open&id=policies# 114



6/28/24, 10:40 AM

BoardDocs® PL

of the United States is governed by the Student Code of Conduct if committed by a student, or by Board policies and
administrative guidelines, applicable State and/or Federal laws, and/or Employee/Administrator Handbook(s) if committed

by a Board employee.

Definitions

Words used in this policy shall have those meanings defined herein; words not defined herein shall be construed according
to their plain and ordinary meanings.

Sexual Harassment: “Sexual Harassment” means conduct on the basis of sex that satisfies one (1) or more of the

following:

A. A Board employee conditioning the provision of an aid, benefit, or service of the District on an individual’s
participation in unwelcome sexual conduct (often called “quid pro quo” harassment);

B. Unwelcome conduct determined by a reasonable person to be so severe, pervasive, and objectively offensive that it
effectively denies a person equal access to the District’s education program or activity; or

C. “Sexual assault” as defined in 20 U.S.C. 1092(f)(6)A(v), or “dating violence” as defined in 34 U.S.C. 12291(a)(10),
“domestic violence” as defined in 34 U.S.C. 12291(a)(8), or “stalking” as defined in 34 U.S.C. 12291(a)(30).

1. “Sexual assault” means any sexual act directed against another person, without the consent of the victim,
including instances where the victim is incapable of giving consent, and the "nonforcible" sex offenses of
Incest and Statutory Rape. Sexual assault includes rape, sodomy, sexual assault with an object, fondling,
incest, and statutory rape.

a.

Rape is the carnal knowledge of a person (i.e., penetration, no matter how slight, of the genital or
anal opening of a person), without the consent of the victim, including instances where the victim is
incapable of giving consent because of age or because of temporary or permanent mental or physical
incapacity.

. Sodomy is oral or anal sexual intercourse with another person, without the consent of the victim,

including instances where the victim is incapable of giving consent because of age or because of
temporary or permanent mental or physical incapacity.

. Sexual Assault with an Object is using an object or instrument to unlawfully penetrate, however

slightly, the genital or anal opening of the body of another person, without the consent of the victim,
including instances where the victim is incapable of giving consent because of age or because of
temporary or permanent mental or physical incapacity. An “object” or “instrument” is anything used
by the offender other than the offender’s genitalia.

. Fondling is the touching of the private body parts of another person for the purpose of sexual

gratification, without the consent of the victim, including instances where the victim is incapable of
giving consent because of age or because of temporary or permanent mental or physical incapacity.

. Incest is sexual intercourse between persons who are related to each other within the degrees

wherein marriage is prohibited by State law.

. Statutory Rape is sexual intercourse with a person who is under the statutory age of consent as

defined by State law.

. Consent refers to words or actions that a reasonable person would understand as agreement to

engage in the sexual conduct at issue. A person may be incapable of giving consent because of age or
because of temporary or permanent mental or physical incapacity. A person who is incapacitated is
not capable of giving consent.

. Incapacitated refers to the state where a person does not understand and/or appreciate the nature or

fact of sexual activity due to the effect of drugs or alcohol consumption, medical condition, disability,
or due to a state of unconsciousness or sleep.

2. “Domestic violence” includes felony or misdemeanor crimes of violence committed by:

a.

a current or former spouse or intimate partner of the victim;

https://go.boarddocs.com/mi/rocf/Board.nsf/Public?open&id=policies#

2/14



6/28/24, 10:40 AM BoardDocs® PL
b. a person with whom the victim shares a child in common;
C. a person who is cohabitating with or has cohabitated with the victim as a spouse or intimate partner;

d. a person similarly situated to a spouse of the victim under the domestic or family violence laws of the
jurisdiction in which the crime occurred; or

e. any other person against an adult or youth victim who is protected from that person’s acts under the
domestic or family violence laws of the jurisdiction in which the crime occurred.

3. “Dating violence” means violence committed by a person who is or has been in a social relationship of a
romantic or intimate nature with the victim. The existence of such a relationship shall be determined based
on consideration of the length of the relationship, the type of relationship, and the frequency of interaction
between the persons involved in the relationship.

4. “Stalking” means engaging in a course of conduct directed at a specific person that would cause a reasonable
person to — (1) fear for the person’s safety or the safety of others; or (2) suffer substantial emotional
distress.

Complainant: "Complainant” means an individual who is alleged to be the victim of conduct that could constitute Sexual
Harassment.

Respondent: “"Respondent” means an individual who has been reported to be the perpetrator of conduct that could
constitute Sexual Harassment.

Formal Complaint: “Formal Complaint” means a document filed by a Complainant or signed by the Title IX Coordinator
alleging Sexual Harassment against a Respondent and requesting that the District investigate the allegation(s) of Sexual
Harassment. At the time of filing a Formal Complaint with the District, a Complainant must be participating in or attempting
to participate in the District’s education program or activity. A “document filed by a complainant” means a document or
electronic submission (such as by electronic mail or through an online portal that the Board provides for this purpose) that
contains the Complainant’s physical or digital signature, or otherwise indicates that the Complainant is the person filing the
Formal Complaint. Where the Title IX Coordinator signs a Formal Complaint, the Title IX Coordinator is not a Complainant
or a party to the Formal Complaint and must not have a conflict of interest or bias for or against complainants or
respondents generally or an individual complainant or respondent.

Actual Knowledge: “Actual knowledge” means notice of Sexual Harassment or allegations of Sexual Harassment to the
District’s Title IX Coordinator, or any District official who has the authority to institute corrective measures on behalf of the
Board, or any Board employee. The mere ability or obligation to report Sexual Harassment or to inform a student about
how to report Sexual Harassment, or having been trained to do so, does not qualify an individual as one who has authority
to institute corrective measures on behalf of the District. “Notice” includes, but is not limited to, a report of Sexual
Harassment to the Title IX Coordinator. This standard is not met when the only District official with actual knowledge is the
Respondent.

Supportive Measures: "Supportive measures” means non-disciplinary, non-punitive individualized services offered as
appropriate, as reasonably available, and without fee or charge to the Complainant or the Respondent before or after the
filing of a Formal Complaint or where no Formal Complaint has been filed. Such measures are designed to restore or
preserve equal access to the District’s education program or activity without unreasonably burdening the other party,
including measures designed to protect the safety of all parties or the District’s educational environment or deter Sexual
Harassment. Supportive measures may include counseling, extensions of deadlines or other course-related adjustments,
modifications of work or class schedules, school/campus escort services, mutual restrictions of contact between the parties,
changes in work locations), leaves of absence, increased security and monitoring of certain areas of the campus (including
school buildings and facilities), and other similar measures.

Education Program or Activity: “"Education program or activity” refers to all operations of the District, including but not
limited to in-person and online educational instruction, employment, extracurricular activities, athletics, performances, and
community engagement and outreach programs. The term applies to all activity that occurs on school grounds or on other
property owned or occupied by the Board. It also includes locations, events, and circumstances that take place off-school
property/grounds over which the Board exercises substantial control over both the Respondent and the context in which the
Sexual Harassment occurs.

School District community: “School District community” refers to students and Board employees (i.e., administrators,

and professional and classified staff), as well as Board members, agents, volunteers, contractors, or other persons subject
to the control and supervision of the Board.

https://go.boarddocs.com/mi/rocf/Board.nsf/Public?open&id=policies# 3/14



6/28/24, 10:40 AM BoardDocs® PL

Third Parties: “Third Parties” include, but are not limited to, guests and/or visitors on School District property (e.g.,
visiting speakers, participants on opposing athletic teams, parents), vendors doing business with, or seeking to do business
with the Board, and other individuals who come in contact with members of the School District community at school-related
events/activities (whether on or off District property).

Inculpatory Evidence: “Inculpatory evidence” is evidence that tends to establish a Respondent’s responsibility for alleged
Sexual Harassment.

Exculpatory Evidence: “Exculpatory evidence” is evidence that tends to clear or excuse a Respondent from allegations of
Sexual Harassment.

Day(s): Unless expressly stated otherwise, the term “day” or “days” as used in this policy means business day(s) (i.e., a
day(s) that the Board office is open for normal operating hours, Monday - Friday, excluding State-recognized holidays).

Eligible Student: “Eligible Student” means a student who has reached eighteen (18) years of age or is attending an
institution of postsecondary education.

Title IX Coordinators

The Board designates and authorizes the following individuals to oversee and coordinate its efforts to comply with Title IX
and its implementing regulations:

Korie Wilson-Crawford

Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources
350 N. Main St.

Rockford, MI 49341

616-863-6554
kwilsoncrawford@rockfordschools.org

Scott Beckman

Director, Security

350 N. Main St.

Rockford, MI 49341
616-863-6320
sbeckman@rockfordschools.org

The Title IX Coordinator shall report directly to the Superintendent. Questions about this policy should be directed to the
Title IX Coordinator.

The Superintendent shall notify applicants for admission and employment, students, parents or legal guardians of
elementary and secondary school students, Board employees, and all unions or professional organizations holding collective
bargaining or professional agreements with the Board of the following information:

The Board of Education of the Rockford Public School District does not discriminate on the basis of sex in its
education program or activity and is required by Title IX and its implementing regulations not to discriminate in such
a manner. The requirement not to discriminate in its education program or activity extends to admission and
employment. The District’s Title IX Coordinators are:

Korie Wilson-Crawford

Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources
350 N. Main St.

Rockford, MI 49341

616-863-6554
kwilsoncrawford@rockfordschools.org

Scott Beckman

Director, Security

350 N. Main St.

Rockford, MI 49341
616-863-6320
sbeckman@rockfordschools.org

Any inquiries about the application of Title IX and its implementing regulations to the District may be referred to the
Title IX Coordinators, the Assistant Secretary for the U.S. Department of Education’s Office for Civil Rights, or both.

https://go.boarddocs.com/mi/rocf/Board.nsf/Public?open&id=policies# 4/14



6/28/24, 10:40 AM BoardDocs® PL

The Board has adopted a grievance process that provides for the prompt and equitable resolution of student and
employee complaints alleging any action that is prohibited by Title IX and/or its implementing regulations. The
grievance process is included in Policy 2266 — Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in Education Programs or
Activities, which is available at: http://go.boarddocs.com/mi/rocf/Board.nsf/Public’open&id=policies. The grievance
process specifically addresses how to report or file a complaint of sex discrimination, how to report or file a formal
complaint of Sexual Harassment, and how the District will respond.

The Superintendent shall also prominently display the Title IX Coordinators’ contact information — including name(s) and/or
title(s), phone number(s), office address(es), and e-mail address(es) — and this policy on the District’s website and in each
handbook or catalog that the Board makes available to applicants for admission and employment, students, parents or legal
guardians of elementary and secondary school students, Board employees, and all unions or professional organizations
holding collective bargaining or professional agreements.

Grievance Process

The Board is committed to promptly and equitably resolving student and employee complaints alleging Sexual Harassment.
The District’s response to allegations of Sexual Harassment will treat Complainants and Respondents equitably, including
providing supportive measures to the Complainant and Respondent, as appropriate, and following this Grievance Process
before the imposition of any disciplinary sanctions or other actions, other than supportive measures, against the
Respondent.

The Title IX Coordinators, along with any investigator(s), decision-maker(s), or any person(s) designated to facilitate an
informal resolution process, shall not have a conflict of interest or bias for or against Complainants or Respondents
generally or an individual Complainant or Respondent.

If a determination of responsibility for Sexual Harassment is made against the Respondent, the Board will provide remedies
to the Complainant. The remedies will be designed to restore or preserve equal access to the District’s education program
or activity. Potential remedies include, but are not limited to, individualized services that constitute supportive measures.
Remedies may also be disciplinary or punitive in nature and may burden the Respondent.

Report of Sexual Discrimination/Harassment

Any person may report sex discrimination, including Sexual Harassment (whether or not the person reporting is the person
alleged to be the victim of conduct that could constitute sex discrimination or Sexual Harassment), in person, by mail, by
telephone, or by electronic mail, using the Title IX Coordinator’s(s’) contact information listed above, or by any other means
that results in the Title IX Coordinator receiving the person’s oral or written report. Reports may be made at any time
(including during non-business hours), by using the telephone number(s) or electronic mail address(es), or by mail to the
office address(es), listed for the Title IX Coordinators.

Students, Board members, and Board employees are required (and other members of the School District community and
Third Parties are encouraged) to report allegations of sex discrimination or Sexual Harassment promptly to the/a Title IX
Coordinator or to any Board employee, who will, in turn, notify the/a Title IX Coordinator. Reports can be made orally or in
writing and should be as specific as possible. The person making the report should, to the extent known, identify the
alleged victim(s), perpetrator(s), and witness(es), and describe in detail what occurred, including date(s), time(s), and
location(s).

If a report involves allegations of Sexual Harassment by or involving the Title IX Coordinator, the person making the report
should submit it to the Superintendent, or another Board employee who, in turn, will notify the Superintendent of the
report. The Superintendent will then serve in place of the Title IX Coordinator for purposes of addressing that report of
Sexual Harassment.

The Board does business with various vendors, contractors, and other third parties who are not students or employees of
the Board. Notwithstanding any rights that a given vendor, contractor, or third-party Respondent may have under this
policy, the Board retains the right to limit any vendor’s, contractor’s, or third-party’s access to school grounds for any
reason. The Board further retains all rights it enjoys by contract or law to terminate its relationship with any vendor,
contractor, or third-party irrespective of any process or outcome under this policy.

A person may file criminal charges simultaneously with filing a Formal Complaint. A person does not need to wait until the

Title IX investigation is completed before filing a criminal complaint. Likewise, questions or complaints relating to Title IX
may be filed with the U.S. Department of Education’s Office for Civil Rights at any time.

https://go.boarddocs.com/mi/rocf/Board.nsf/Public?open&id=policies# 5/14



6/28/24, 10:40 AM BoardDocs® PL

Any allegations of Sexual Misconduct/Sexual Activity not involving Sexual Harassment will be addressed through the
procedures outlined in Board policies and/or administrative guidelines, the applicable Student Code of Conduct, applicable
collective bargaining agreement, and/or Employee/Administrator Handbook.

Because the Board is considered to have actual knowledge of Sexual Harassment or allegations of Sexual Harassment if any
Board employee has such knowledge, and because the Board must take specific actions when it has notice of Sexual
Harassment or allegations of Sexual Harassment, a Board employee who has independent knowledge of or receives a report
involving allegations of sex discrimination and/or Sexual Harassment must notify the/a Title IX Coordinator within two (2)
days of learning the information or receiving the report. The Board employee must also comply with mandatory reporting
responsibilities pursuant to M.C.L. 722.623 and Policy 8462 — Student Abuse and Neglect, if applicable. If the Board
employee’s knowledge is based on another individual bringing the information to the Board employee’s attention and the
reporting individual submitted a written complaint to the Board employee, the Board employee must provide the written
complaint to the Title IX Coordinator.

If a Board employee fails to report an incident of Sexual Harassment of which the Board employee is aware, the Board
employee may be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination.

When a report of Sexual Harassment is made, the Title IX Coordinator shall promptly (i.e., within two (2) days of the Title
IX Coordinator’s receipt of the report of Sexual Harassment) contact the Complainant (including the parent/guardian if the
Complainant is under eighteen (18) years of age or under guardianship) to discuss the availability of supportive measures,
consider the Complainant’s wishes with respect to supportive measures, inform the Complainant of the availability of
supportive measures with or without the filing of a Formal Complaint, and explain to the Complainant the process for filing
a Formal Complaint. The Title IX Coordinator is responsible for coordinating the effective implementation of supportive
measures. Any supportive measures provided to the Complainant or Respondent shall be maintained as confidential, to the
extent that maintaining such confidentiality will not impair the ability of the District to provide the supportive measures.

Emergency Removal: Subject to limitations and/or procedures imposed by State and/or Federal law, the District may
remove a student Respondent from its education program or activity on an emergency basis after conducting an
individualized safety and risk analysis. The purpose of the individualized safety and risk analysis is to determine whether
the student Respondent poses an immediate threat to the physical health or safety of any student or other individual arising
from the allegations of Sexual Harassment that justifies removal. If the District determines the student Respondent poses
such a threat, it will so notify the student Respondent and the student Respondent will have an opportunity to challenge the
decision immediately following the removal. See Policy 5610 — Emergency Removal, Suspension, and Expulsion of

Students and Policy 5611 — Due Process Rights.

If the Respondent is a non-student employee, the District may place the Respondent on administrative leave during the
pendency of the grievance process.

For all other Respondents, including other members of the School District community and Third Parties, the Board retains
broad discretion to prohibit such persons from entering onto its school grounds and other properties at any time and for
any reason, whether after receiving a report of Sexual Harassment or otherwise.

Formal Complaint of Sexual Harassment

A Formal Complaint may be filed with the Title IX Coordinator in person, by mail, or by electronic mail, by using the contact
information set forth above. If a Formal Complaint involves allegations of Sexual Harassment by or involving the Title IX
Coordinator, the Complainant should submit the Formal Complaint to the Superintendent, who will designate another
person to serve in place of the Title IX Coordinator for the limited purpose of implementing the grievance process with
respect to that Formal Complaint.

When the Title IX Coordinator receives a Formal Complaint or signs a Formal Complaint, the District will follow its Grievance
Process, as set forth herein. Specifically, the District will undertake an objective evaluation of all relevant evidence -
including both inculpatory and exculpatory evidence — and provide that credibility determinations will not be based on a
person’s status as a Complainant, Respondent, or witness.

It is a violation of this policy for a Complainant(s), Respondent(s), and/or witness(es) to knowingly making false statements
or knowingly submitting false information during the grievance process, including intentionally making a false report of
Sexual Harassment or submitting a false Formal Complaint. The Board will not tolerate such conduct, which is a violation of
the Student Code of Conduct and the Employee/Administrator Handbook.

The Respondent is presumed not responsible for the alleged conduct until a determination regarding responsibility is made
at the conclusion of the grievance process.

Timeline

https://go.boarddocs.com/mi/rocf/Board.nsf/Public?open&id=policies# 6/14



6/28/24, 10:40 AM BoardDocs® PL

The District will seek to conclude the grievance process, including resolving any appeals, within sixty (60) days of receipt of
the Formal Complaint.

If the Title IX Coordinator offers informal resolution processes, the informal resolution processes may not be used by the
Complainant or Respondent to unduly delay the investigation and determination of responsibility. The timeline, however,
may be subject to a temporary delay of the grievance process or a limited extension for good cause with written notice to
the Complainant and the Respondent of the delay or extension and the reasons for the action. Good cause may include
considerations such as the absence of a party, a party’s advisor, or a witness; concurrent law enforcement activity; and the
need for language assistance or accommodation of disabilities.

Upon receipt of a Formal Complaint, the Title IX Coordinator will provide written notice of the following to the parties who
are known:

A. notice of the Board’s grievance process, including any informal resolution processes;

B. notice of the allegations of misconduct that potentially constitutes Sexual Harassment as defined in this policy,
including sufficient details known at the time and with sufficient time to prepare a response before any initial
interview. Sufficient details include the identities of the parties involved in the incident, if known, the conduct
allegedly constituting Sexual Harassment, and the date and location of the alleged incident, if known. The written

notice must:

1. include a statement that the Respondent is presumed not responsible for the alleged conduct and that a
determination regarding responsibility will be made at the conclusion of the grievance process;

2. inform the parties that they may have an advisor of their choice, who may be, but is not required to be, an
attorney, and may inspect and review evidence;

3. inform the parties of any provision in the Student Code of Conduct, this policy, and/or
Employee/Administrator Handbook that prohibits knowingly making false statements or knowingly submitting
false information during the grievance process.

If, during the course of the investigation, the investigator becomes aware of allegations about the Complainant or
Respondent that are not included in the original notice provided to the parties, the investigator will notify the Title IX
Coordinator and the Title IX Coordinator will decide whether the investigator should investigate the additional allegations; if
the Title IX Coordinator decides to include the new allegations as part of the investigation, the Title IX Coordinator will
provide notice of the additional allegations to the parties whose identities are known.
Dismissal of a Formal Complaint
The District shall investigate the allegations in a Formal Complaint unless the conduct alleged in the Formal Complaint:

A. would not constitute Sexual Harassment (as defined in this policy) even if proved;

B. did not occur in the District’s education program or activity; or

C. did not occur against a person in the United States.
If one (1) of the preceding circumstances exist, the Title IX Coordinator shall dismiss the Formal Complaint. If the Title IX
Coordinator dismisses the Formal Complaint due to one (1) of the preceding reasons, the District may still investigate and
take action with respect to such alleged misconduct pursuant to another provision of an applicable code of conduct, Board
policy, and/or Employee/Administrator Handbook.

The Title IX Coordinator may dismiss a Formal Complaint, or any allegations therein, if at any time during the investigation:

A. a Complainant notifies the Title IX Coordinator in writing that the Complainant would like to withdraw the Formal
Complaint or any allegations therein;

B. the Respondent is no longer enrolled in the District or employed by the Board; or

C. specific circumstances prevent the District from gathering evidence sufficient to reach a determination as to the
Formal Complaint or allegations therein.

https://go.boarddocs.com/mi/rocf/Board.nsf/Public?open&id=policies# 7114



6/28/24, 10:40 AM BoardDocs® PL

If the Title IX Coordinator dismisses a Formal Complaint or allegations therein, the Title IX Coordinator must promptly send
written notice of the dismissal and the reason(s) therefor simultaneously to the parties.

Consolidation of Formal Complaints

The Title IX Coordinator may consolidate Formal Complaints as to allegations of Sexual Harassment against more than one
(1) Respondent, or by more than one (1) Complainant against one (1) or more Respondents, or by one (1) party against
the other party, where the allegations of Sexual Harassment arise out of the same facts or circumstances.

Where a grievance process involves more than one (1) Complainant or more than one (1) Respondent, references in this
policy to the singular “party,” “Complainant,” or “*Respondent” include the plural, as applicable.

Informal Resolution Process

Under no circumstances shall a Complainant be required as a condition of enrollment or continuing enrollment, or
employment or continuing employment, or enjoyment of any other right, to waive any right to an investigation and
adjudication of a Formal Complaint of Sexual Harassment. Similarly, no party shall be required to participate in an informal
resolution process.

If a Formal Complaint is filed, the Title IX Coordinator may offer to the parties an informal resolution process. If the parties
mutually agree to participate in the informal resolution process, the Title IX Coordinator shall designate a trained individual
to facilitate an informal resolution process, such as mediation, that does not involve a full investigation and adjudication.
The informal resolution process may be used at any time prior to the decision-maker(s) reaching a determination regarding
responsibility.

If the Title IX Coordinator is going to propose an informal resolution process, the Title IX Coordinator shall provide to the
parties a written notice disclosing:

A. the allegations;

B. the requirements of the informal resolution process including the circumstances under which it precludes the parties
from resuming a Formal Complaint arising from the same allegations; and

C. any consequences resulting from participating in the informal resolution process, including the records that will be
maintained or could be shared.

Any time prior to agreeing to a resolution, any party has the right to withdraw from the informal resolution process and
resume the grievance process with respect to the Formal Complaint.

Before commencing the informal resolution process, the Title IX Coordinator shall obtain from the parties their voluntary,
written consent to the informal resolution process.

During the pendency of the informal resolution process, the investigation and adjudication processes that would otherwise
occur have stayed and all related deadlines are suspended.

The informal resolution process is not available to resolve allegations that a Board employee or another adult member of
the School District community or Third Party sexually harassed a student.

The informal resolution process is not available to resolve allegations involving a sexual assault involving a student
Complainant and a student Respondent.

Investigation of a Formal Complaint of Sexual Harassment

In conducting the investigation of a Formal Complaint and throughout the grievance process, the burden of proof and the
burden of gathering evidence sufficient to reach a determination regarding responsibility is on the District, not the parties.

In making the determination of responsibility, the decision-maker(s) is(are) directed to use the preponderance of the
evidence standard. The decision-maker(s) is charged with considering the totality of all available evidence, from all relevant
sources.

The District is not permitted to access, consider, disclose, or otherwise use a party’s records that are made or maintained

by a physician, psychiatrist, psychologist, or other recognized professional or paraprofessional acting in the professional’s or
paraprofessional’s capacity or assisting in that capacity, and which are made and maintained in connection with the

https://go.boarddocs.com/mi/rocf/Board.nsf/Public?open&id=policies# 8/14



6/28/24, 10:40 AM BoardDocs® PL

provision of treatment to the party, unless the party provides the District with voluntary, written consent to do so; if a
student party is not an Eligible Student, the District must obtain the voluntary, written consent of a parent.

Similarly, the investigator(s) and decision-maker(s) may not require, allow, rely upon or otherwise use questions or
evidence that constitute, or seek disclosure of, information protected under a legally recognized privilege, unless the person
holding such privilege has waived the privilege in writing.

As part of the investigation, the parties have the right to:
A. present witnesses, including fact and expert witnesses, and other inculpatory and exculpatory evidence; and

B. have others present during any grievance proceeding, including the opportunity to be accompanied to any related
meeting or proceeding by the advisor of their choice, who may be, but is not required to be, an attorney. The
District may not limit the choice or presence of an advisor for either the Complainant or Respondent in any meeting
or grievance proceeding.

Board Policy 2461 — Recording of District Meetings Involving Students and/or Parents controls whether a person is
allowed to audio record or video record any meeting or grievance proceeding.

Neither party shall be restricted in their ability to discuss the allegations under investigation or to gather and present
relevant evidence.

The District will provide to a party whose participation is invited or expected written notice of the date, time, location,
participants, and purpose of all investigative interviews, or other meetings, with sufficient time for the party to prepare to
participate. The investigator(s) and decision-maker(s) must provide a minimum of one (1) days’ notice with respect to
investigative interviews and other meetings.

Both parties shall have an equal opportunity to inspect and review any evidence obtained as part of the investigation that is
directly related to the allegations raised in the Formal Complaint, including the evidence upon which the District does not
intend to rely in reaching a determination regarding responsibility and inculpatory or exculpatory evidence whether
obtained from a party or other source, so that each party can meaningfully respond to the evidence prior to the conclusion
of the investigation.

Prior to completion of the investigative report, the Title IX Coordinator will send to each party and the party’s advisor, if
any, the evidence subject to inspection and review in an electronic format or a hard copy, and the parties will have at least
ten (10) calendar days to submit a written response, which the investigator will consider prior to completion of the
investigative report.

At the conclusion of the investigation, the investigator shall create an investigative report that fairly summarizes relevant
evidence and send the report to each party and the party’s advisor, if any, for their review and written response. The
investigator will send the investigative report in an electronic format or a hard copy, at least ten (10) calendar days prior
to the decision-maker(s) issuing a determination regarding responsibility.

Determination of Responsibility

The Title IX Coordinator shall appoint a decision-maker(s) to issue a determination of responsibility. The decision-maker(s)
cannot be the same person(s) as the Title IX Coordinators or the investigator(s).

After the investigator sends the investigative report to the parties and the decision-maker(s), and before the decision-
maker(s) reaches a determination regarding responsibility, the decision-maker(s) will afford each party the opportunity to
submit written, relevant questions that a party wants asked of any party or witness, provide each party with the answers,
and allow for additional, limited follow-up questions from each party. The decision-maker(s) must explain to the party
proposing the questions any decision to exclude a question as not relevant.

Questions and evidence about the Complainant’s sexual predisposition or prior sexual behavior are not relevant, unless
such questions and evidence about the Complainant’s prior sexual behavior are offered to prove that someone other than
the Respondent committed the conduct alleged by the Complainant, or if the questions and evidence concern specific
incidents of the Complainant’s prior sexual behavior with respect to the Respondent and are offered to prove consent. The
decision-maker(s) must explain to the party proposing the questions any decision to exclude a question as not relevant.

Determination regarding responsibility: The decision-maker(s) will issue a written determination regarding
responsibility. To reach this determination, the decision-maker(s) must apply the preponderance of the evidence standard.

The written determination will include the following content:

https://go.boarddocs.com/mi/rocf/Board.nsf/Public?open&id=policies# 9/14



6/28/24, 10:40 AM BoardDocs® PL

A. identification of the allegations potentially constituting Sexual Harassment pursuant to this policy;

B. a description of the procedural steps taken from the receipt of the Formal Complaint through the determination,
including any notifications to the parties, interviews with parties and witnesses, site visits, and methods used to
gather other evidence;

C. findings of fact supporting the determination;

D. conclusions regarding the application of the applicable code of conduct to the facts;

E. a statement of, and rationale for, the result as to each allegation, including a determination regarding responsibility,
any disciplinary sanctions the decision-maker(s) is recommending that the District impose on the Respondent(s),
and whether remedies designed to restore or preserve equal access to the District’s education program or activity
should be provided by the District to the Complainant(s); and

F. the procedures and permissible bases for the Complainant(s) and Respondent(s) to appeal.

The following disciplinary sanctions/consequences may be imposed on a student Respondent who is determined responsible
for violating this policy (i.e., engaging in Sexual Harassment):

A. Informal Discipline

1. writing assignments;

2. changing of seating or location;

3. pre-school, lunchtime, and/or after-school detention;

4. in-school discipline;

5. Saturday school.

B. Formal Discipline

1. suspension of bus riding/transportation privileges;

2. removal from co-curricular and/or extra-curricular activity(ies), including athletics;

3. emergency removal;

4. suspension for up to ten (10) school days;

5. long-term suspension or expulsion;

6. any other sanction authorized by the Student Code of Conduct.
If the decision-maker(s) determines the student Respondent is responsible for violating this policy (i.e., engaging in Sexual
Harassment), the decision-maker(s) will recommend appropriate remedies, including disciplinary sanctions/consequences.
The Title IX Coordinator will notify the Superintendent of the recommended remedies, so an authorized administrator can
consider the recommendation(s) and implement an appropriate remedy(ies) in compliance with Policy 5600 - Student
Discipline, Policy 5605 — Suspension/Expulsion of Students with Disabilities, Policy 5610 — Emergency Removal, Suspension,
and Expulsion of Students, Policy 5610.02 - In-School Discipline, and Policy 5611 — Due Process Rights. Discipline of a
student Respondent must comply with the applicable provisions of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement

Act (IDEA) and/or Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1972, and their respective implementing regulations.

The following disciplinary sanctions/consequences may be imposed on an employee Respondent who is determined
responsible for violating this policy (i.e., engaging in Sexual Harassment):

A. oral or written warning;

B. written reprimands;

https://go.boarddocs.com/mi/rocf/Board.nsf/Public?open&id=policies# 10/14



6/28/24, 10:40 AM BoardDocs® PL
C. performance improvement plan;
D. required counseling;
E. required training or education;
F. suspension with pay;
G. suspension without pay;

H. termination, and any other sanction authorized by any applicable Employee/Administrator Handbook and/or
collective bargaining agreement.

If the decision-maker(s) determines the employee Respondent is responsible for violating this policy (i.e., engaging in
Sexual Harassment), the decision-maker(s) will recommend appropriate remedies, including disciplinary
sanctions/consequences. The Title IX Coordinator will notify the Superintendent of the recommended remedies, so an
authorized administrator can consider the recommendation(s) and implement an appropriate remedy(ies) in compliance
with applicable due process procedures, whether statutory or contractual.

Discipline of an employee will be implemented in accordance with Federal and State law, Board policy, and applicable
provisions of any relevant collective bargaining agreement.

The following disciplinary sanctions/consequences may be imposed on a non-student/non-employee member of the School
District community or Third Party who is determined responsible for violating this policy (i.e., engaging in Sexual
Harassment):

A. oral or written warning;

B. suspension or termination/cancellation of the Board’s contract with the third-party vendor or contractor;

C. mandatory monitoring of the third-party while on school property and/or while working/interacting with students;

D. restriction/prohibition on the third-party’s ability to be on school property; and

E. any combination of the same.
If the decision-maker(s) determines the third-party Respondent is responsible for violating this policy (i.e., engaging in
Sexual Harassment), the decision-maker(s) will recommend appropriate remedies, including the imposition of sanctions.

The Title IX Coordinator will notify the Superintendent of the recommended remedies, so appropriate action can be taken.

The decision-maker(s) will provide the written determination to the Title IX Coordinator who will provide the written
determination to the parties simultaneously.

In ultimately, imposing a disciplinary sanction/consequence, the Superintendent will consider the severity of the incident,
previous disciplinary violations (if any), and any mitigating circumstances.

The District’s resolution of a Formal Complaint ordinarily will not be impacted by the fact that criminal charges involving the
same incident have been filed or that charges have been dismissed or reduced.

At any point in the grievance process, the Superintendent may involve local law enforcement and/or file criminal charges
related to allegations of Sexual Harassment that involve a sexual assault.

The Title IX Coordinator is responsible for the effective implementation of any remedies.
Appeal

Both parties have the right to file an appeal from a determination regarding responsibility, or from the Title IX Coordinator’s
dismissal of a Formal Complaint or any allegations therein, on the following bases:

A. procedural irregularity that affected the outcome of the matter (e.g., material deviation from established
procedures);

B. new evidence that was not reasonably available at the time the determination regarding responsibility or dismissal
was made, that could affect the outcome of the matter; and

https://go.boarddocs.com/mi/rocf/Board.nsf/Public?open&id=policies# 1114



6/28/24, 10:40 AM BoardDocs® PL

C. the Title IX Coordinator, investigator(s), or decision-maker(s) had a conflict of interest or bias for or against
Complainants or Respondents generally or the individual Complainant(s) or Respondent(s) that affected the outcome
of the matter.

The Complainant(s) may not challenge the ultimate disciplinary sanction/consequence that is imposed.

Any party wishing to appeal the decision-maker(s)’s determination of responsibility, or the Title IX Coordinator’s dismissal
of a Formal Complaint or any allegations therein, must submit a written appeal to the Title IX Coordinator within three (3)
days after receipt of the decision-maker(s)’s determination of responsibility or the Title IX Coordinator’s dismissal of a
Formal Complaint or any allegations therein.

Nothing herein shall prevent the Superintendent from implementing appropriate remedies, however, excluding disciplinary
sanction, while the appeal is pending.

As to all appeals, the Title IX Coordinator will notify the other party in writing when an appeal is filed and implement appeal
procedures equally for both parties.

The decision-maker(s) for the appeal shall not be the same person(s) as the decision-maker(s) that reached the
determination regarding responsibility or dismissal, the investigator(s), or the Title IX Coordinators. The decision-maker(s)
for the appeal shall not have a conflict of interest or bias for or against Complainants or Respondents generally or an
individual Complainant(s) or Respondent(s) and shall receive the same training as required of other decision-makers.

Both parties shall have a reasonable, equal opportunity to submit a written statement in support of, or challenging, the
outcome.

The parties’ written statements in support of, or challenging, the determination of responsibility must be submitted within
five (5) days after the Title IX Coordinator provides notice to the non-appealing party of the appeal.

The decision-maker(s) for the appeal shall issue a written decision describing the result of the appeal and the rationale for
the result. The original decision-maker's(s’) determination of responsibility will stand if the appeal request is not filed in a
timely manner or the appealing party fails to show clear error and/or a compelling rationale for overturning or modifying
the original determination. The written decision will be provided to the Title IX Coordinator who will provide it
simultaneously to both parties. The written decision will be issued within five (5) days of when the parties’ written
statements were submitted.

The determination of responsibility associated with a Formal Complaint, including any recommendations for
remedies/disciplinary sanctions, becomes final when the time for filing an appeal has passed or, if an appeal is filed, at the
point when the decision-maker(s) for the appeal’s decision is delivered to the Complainant and the Respondent. No further
review beyond the appeal is permitted.

Retaliation

Neither the Board nor any other person may intimidate, threaten, coerce, or discriminate against any individual for the
purpose of interfering with any right or privilege secured by Title IX, its implementing regulations, or this policy, or because
the individual made a report or complaint, testified, assisted, or participated or refused to participate in any manner in an
investigation, proceeding, or hearing under this policy. Intimidation, threats, coercion, or discrimination, including charges
against an individual for code of conduct violations that do not involve sex discrimination or Sexual Harassment, but arise
out of the same facts or circumstances as a report or complaint of sex discrimination, or a report or Formal Complaint of
Sexual Harassment, for the purpose of interfering with any right or privilege secured by Title IX, its implementing
regulations, or this policy, constitutes retaliation. Retaliation against a person for making a report of Sexual Harassment,
filing a Formal Complaint, or participating in an investigation is a serious violation of this policy that can result in the
imposition of disciplinary sanctions/consequences and/or other appropriate remedies.

Complaints alleging retaliation may be filed according to the grievance process set forth above.

The exercise of rights protected under the First Amendment of the United States Constitution does not constitute retaliation
prohibited under this policy.

Charging an individual with a code of conduct violation for making a materially false statement in bad faith in the course of
a grievance proceeding under this policy shall not constitute retaliation, provided, however, that a determination regarding
responsibility, alone, is not sufficient to conclude that any party made a materially false statement in bad faith.

Confidentiality

https://go.boarddocs.com/mi/rocf/Board.nsf/Public?open&id=policies# 12/14



6/28/24, 10:40 AM BoardDocs® PL

The District will keep confidential the identity of any individual who has made a report or complaint of sex discrimination,
including any individual who has made a report or filed a Formal Complaint of Sexual Harassment, any Complainant, any
individual who has been reported to be the perpetrator of sex discrimination, any Respondent, and any witness, except as
may be permitted by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act ("FERPA"), 20 U.S.C. 1232g, or FERPA regulations, 34
CFR part 99, or as required by law, or to carry out the purposes of 34 CFR part 106, including the conduct of any
investigation, hearing, or judicial proceeding arising thereunder (i.e., the District’s obligation to maintain confidentiality
shall not impair or otherwise affect the Complainant’s and Respondent’s receipt of the information to which they are entitled
related to the investigative record and determination of responsibility).

Application of the First Amendment

The Board will construe and apply this policy consistent with the First Amendment to the U.S. Constitution. In no case will a
Respondent be found to have committed Sexual Harassment based on expressive conduct that is protected by the First
Amendment.

Training

The District’s Title IX Coordinator, along with any investigator(s), decision-maker(s), or person(s) designated to facilitate an
informal resolution process, must receive training on:

A. the definition of Sexual Harassment (as that term is used in this policy);
B. the scope of the District’s education program or activity;

C. how to conduct an investigation and implement the grievance process, appeals, and informal resolution processes,
as applicable; and

D. how to serve impartially, including by avoiding prejudgment of the facts at issue, conflicts of interests, and bias.

All Board employees will be trained concerning their legal obligation to report Sexual Harassment to the Title IX
Coordinator. This training will include practical information about how to identify and report Sexual Harassment.

Recordkeeping

As part of its response to alleged violations of this policy, the District shall create, and maintain for a period of seven (7)
calendar years, records of any actions, including any supportive measures, taken in response to a report or Formal
Complaint of Sexual Harassment. In each instance, the District shall document the basis for its conclusion that its response
was not deliberately indifferent, and document that it has taken measures designed to restore or preserve equal access to
the District’s education program or activity. If the District does not provide a Complainant with supportive measures, then
the District will document the reasons why such a response was not clearly unreasonable in light of the known
circumstances. The documentation of certain bases or measures does not limit the District in the future from providing
additional explanations or detailing additional measures taken.

The District shall maintain for a period of seven (7) calendar years the following records:

A. each Sexual Harassment investigation including any determination regarding responsibility, any disciplinary
sanctions recommended and/or imposed on the Respondent(s), and any remedies provided to the Complainant(s)
designed to restore or preserve equal access to the District’s education program or activity;

B. any appeal and the result therefrom;

C. any informal resolution and the result therefrom; and

D. all materials used to train Title IX Coordinators, investigators, decision-makers, and any person who facilitates an
informal resolution process.

The District will make its training materials publicly available on its website.

Outside Appointments, Dual Appointments, and Delegations

The Board retains the discretion to appoint suitably qualified persons who are not Board employees to fulfill any function of
the Board under this policy, including, but not limited to, Title IX Coordinator, investigator, decision-maker, decision-maker

for appeals, facilitator of informal resolution processes, and advisor.

https://go.boarddocs.com/mi/rocf/Board.nsf/Public?open&id=policies# 13/14



6/28/24, 10:40 AM BoardDocs® PL

The Board also retains the discretion to appoint two (2) or more persons to jointly fulfill the role of Title IX Coordinator,
investigator, decision-maker, decision-maker for appeals, facilitator of informal resolution processes, and advisor.

The Superintendent may delegate functions assigned to a specific Board employee under this policy, including but not
limited to the functions assigned to the Title IX Coordinator, investigator, decision-maker, decision-maker for appeals,

facilitator of informal resolution processes, and advisor to any suitably qualified individual and such delegation may be
rescinded by the Superintendent at any time.

© Neola 2021

Legal 20 U.S.C. 1092(F)(6)(A)(v)

20 U.S.C. 1400 et seq., The Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act
of 2004 (IDEIA)

20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq., Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (Title IX)
34 C.F.R. Part 106

34 U.S.C. 12291(a)(8)

34 U.S.C. 12291(a)(10)

34 U.S.C. 12291(a)(30)

42 U.S.C. 1983

42 U.S.C. 2000c et seq., Title IV of the Civil Rights Act of 1964

42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq.

42 U.S.C. 2000e et seq.

OCR’s Revised Sexual Harassment Guidance (2001)

https://go.boarddocs.com/mi/rocf/Board.nsf/Public?open&id=policies# 14/14



As of July 2, 2024, the Department is currently enjoined by federal court orders from
enforcing the 2024 Title IX regulations in the states of Alaska, Idaho, Indiana, Kansas,
Kentucky, Louisiana, Mississippi, Montana, Ohio, Tennessee, Utah, Virginia, West
Virginia, and Wyoming, and the regulations and these resources therefore do not
currently apply in those states.

FACT SHEET: U.S. Department of Education’s 2024 Title IX Final Rule Overview

Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (Title IX) was signed into law more than 50
years ago. In the decades since, Title IX’s protections have paved the way for tremendous strides
in access to education and more for millions of students across the country and have opened
doors for generations of women and girls. In spite of this historic progress, rates of sexual
harassment and assault in our nation’s schools and colleges remain unacceptably high. Many
women see their education derailed because of pregnancy discrimination. And many LGBTQI+
students face bullying and harassment just because of who they are. The Biden-Harris
Administration believes that the promise of Title IX, an education free from sex discrimination,
remains as vital now as it was when it was first signed into law.

On April 19, 2024, the U.S. Department of Education released its final rule to fully effectuate
Title IX’s promise that no person experiences sex discrimination in federally funded education.
Before issuing the proposed regulations, the Department received feedback on its Title IX
regulations, as amended in 2020, from a wide variety of stakeholders. The regulations released
today draw on the Department’s engagement with tens of thousands of students, parents,
educators, State government representatives, advocates, lawyers, researchers, and representatives
from elementary schools, secondary schools, and postsecondary institutions. After releasing the
proposed regulations in July 2022, the Department received and reviewed more than 240,000
comments from the public to inform this rulemaking.

The final regulations will help to ensure that all persons, including students and employees,
receive appropriate support if they experience sex discrimination in schools and that schools’
procedures for investigating and resolving complaints of sex discrimination are accurate and fair
to all involved. The final regulations strengthen several major provisions from the current
regulations and provide schools with information to meet their Title IX obligations while
providing appropriate discretion and flexibility to account for variations in school size, student
populations, and administrative structures. The final regulations also provide greater clarity
regarding: the definition of “sex-based harassment™; the scope of sex discrimination, including
schools’ obligations not to discriminate based on sex stereotypes, sex characteristics, pregnancy
or related conditions, sexual orientation, and gender identity; and schools’ obligations to provide
an educational environment free from discrimination on the basis of sex.

The final regulations strengthen vital protections for students in our nation’s schools and provide
clear rules to help schools meet their Title IX obligation to eliminate sex discrimination in their
education programs and activities. The final regulations also reaffirm the Department’s core
commitment to fundamental fairness for all parties; the rights of parents and guardians to support
minor children; respect for freedom of speech and academic freedom; and respect for the
autonomy that complainants need and deserve when they come forward with a claim of sex
discrimination.

The final regulations:

Provide full protection from sex-based harassment.



The final regulations strengthen vital protections from all forms of sex-based harassment,
including sexual violence and unwelcome sex-based conduct that creates a hostile environment
by limiting or denying a person’s ability to participate in or benefit from a school’s education
program or activity.

Require schools to take prompt and effective action to end any sex discrimination in their
education programs or activities—and to prevent its recurrence and remedy its effects.
The final regulations promote accountability and fulfill Title IX’s nondiscrimination mandate by
requiring schools to act promptly and effectively in response to information about conduct that
reasonably may constitute sex discrimination, including sexual violence and other forms of sex-
based harassment. These regulations also require that schools train employees about the school’s
obligation to address sex discrimination, as well as employees’ obligations to notify or provide
contact information for the Title IX Coordinator.

Require schools to provide supportive measures to complainants and respondents affected
by conduct that may constitute sex discrimination, including sexual violence and other
forms of sex-based harassment.

Under the final regulations, schools are required to offer supportive measures, as appropriate, to
restore or preserve a party’s access to the school’s education program or activity or provide
support during a school’s grievance procedures or the informal resolution process. Supportive
measures cannot be unreasonably burdensome to a party and cannot be imposed for punitive or
disciplinary reasons.

Require schools to respond promptly and effectively to all complaints of sex discrimination
with a fair, transparent, and reliable process that includes trained, unbiased
decisionmakers to evaluate all relevant and not otherwise impermissible evidence.

The final regulations strengthen requirements for schools to conduct reliable and impartial
investigations of all sex discrimination complaints. The final regulations maintain several major
provisions from the current regulations to ensure consistency for schools while updating required
procedures to more effectively protect against sex discrimination in the nation’s elementary
schools, secondary schools, and postsecondary institutions.

The Department’s final regulations include the following:

* All schools must treat complainants and respondents equitably.

» Title IX Coordinators, investigators, decisionmakers, and facilitators of an informal
resolution process must not have a conflict of interest or bias for or against complainants
or respondents generally or an individual complainant or respondent.

* A school’s grievance procedures must include a presumption that the respondent is not
responsible for the alleged sex discrimination until a determination is made at the
conclusion of the school’s grievance procedures.

* A school’s grievance procedures must require adequate notice to the parties of the
allegations, dismissal, delays, meetings, proceedings, and determinations.

* A school’s grievance procedures must give the parties an equal opportunity to present
and access relevant and not otherwise impermissible evidence, as well as provide a
reasonable opportunity for each party to respond to that evidence.



* The school’s decisionmakers must objectively evaluate each party’s relevant and not
otherwise impermissible evidence.

* A school must have a process enabling the decisionmaker to assess a party’s or witness’s
credibility when credibility is in dispute and relevant. For sex-based harassment
complaints involving a student party at a postsecondary institution, this process must
include either: questioning by the investigator or decisionmaker during individual
meetings with a party or witness (including questions proposed by each party), or
questioning by the decisionmaker during a live hearing (including questions proposed by
each party and asked by the decisionmaker or the party’s advisor).

* In evaluating the parties’ evidence, a school must use the preponderance of the evidence
standard of proof unless the school uses the clear and convincing evidence standard in all
other comparable proceedings, including proceedings relating to other discrimination
complaints, in which case the school may use that standard in determining whether sex
discrimination occurred.

* A school must not impose disciplinary sanctions under Title IX on any person unless it
determines at the conclusion of grievance procedures that sex discrimination for which
the person was responsible has occurred.

Provide schools with flexibility to adapt the regulations’ grievance procedure requirements
to their educational communities so that all schools can implement Title IX’s promise of
nondiscrimination fully and fairly in their educational environments.

The Department’s final regulations will enable all schools to meet their Title IX obligations
while providing appropriate discretion and flexibility to account for variations in school size,
student populations, and administrative structures. For instance, schools have the option to use a
single-investigator model, and schools may choose to use this model in some, but not all, cases
as long as it is clear in their grievance procedures when this model will be utilized. Schools also
have the option to offer an informal resolution process for sex discrimination complaints unless
the complaint includes allegations that an employee engaged in sex-based harassment of an
elementary school or secondary school student, or unless such a process would conflict with
Federal, State, or local law.

Further, the Department’s final regulations reflect a framework that accounts for differences in
the age, maturity, needs, and level of independence of students in various educational settings.
The final regulations include some requirements that apply in all educational settings as well as
specialized requirements that are tailored to the unique situation of sex-based harassment
complaints involving postsecondary students. This framework is designed to ensure that all
elementary and secondary schools and postsecondary institutions provide for the prompt and
equitable resolution of sex discrimination complaints in their respective settings.

Protect students, employees, and applicants from discrimination based on pregnancy or
related conditions.

The final regulations update longstanding existing protections for students, employees, and
applicants against discrimination based on pregnancy, childbirth, termination of pregnancy,
lactation, related medical conditions, or recovery from these conditions. Specifically, the final
regulations strengthen requirements that schools provide reasonable modifications for students



based on pregnancy or related conditions, allow for reasonable break time for lactation for
employees, and access to a clean, private lactation space for students and employees.

The final regulations also require that when a student, a parent of a minor student, or other
authorized legal representative informs a school employee of a student’s pregnancy or related
conditions, the employee then must provide the individual with information about the school’s
obligations to prevent discrimination and ensure equal access. The final regulations also prohibit
schools from disclosing personally identifiable information they obtain through complying with
Title IX, including information about reasonable modifications for pregnancy or related
conditions, with limited exceptions.

Prohibit discrimination against LGBTQI+ students, employees, and others.

The rule prohibits discrimination and harassment based on sexual orientation, gender identity,
and sex characteristics in federally funded education programs, applying the reasoning of the
Supreme Court’s ruling in Bostock v. Clayton County.

Protect people from harm when they are separated or treated differently based on sex in
school.

The final regulations clarify that a school must not separate or treat people differently based on
sex in a manner that subjects them to more than de minimis harm, except in limited
circumstances permitted by Title IX. The final regulations further recognize that preventing
someone from participating in school (including in sex-separate activities) consistent with their
gender identity causes that person more than de minimis harm. This general nondiscrimination
principle applies except in the limited circumstances specified by statute, such as in the context
of sex-separate living facilities and sex-separate athletic teams.

The final regulations do not include new rules governing eligibility criteria for athletic teams.

Protects students, employees, and others from retaliation.

The final regulations reinforce that schools must not intimidate, threaten, coerce, or discriminate
against someone in order to interfere with their Title IX rights or because they reported sex
discrimination, including sexual violence or other forms of sex-based harassment, or participated
in, or refused to participate in, the school’s Title IX process. The final regulations also make
clear that schools must protect students from peer retaliation by other students.

Support the right of parents and guardians to act on behalf of their elementary and
secondary school children.

The final regulations support the rights of parents and guardians to act on behalf of a minor
student, including when seeking assistance under Title IX and participating in a school’s Title IX
grievance procedures.

Ensure that schools communicate their nondiscrimination policies and procedures.
The final regulations require schools to clearly and effectively inform key people, including

students, employees, and applicants, of their nondiscrimination policies and procedures.

Prohibit schools from sharing personal information.



The final regulations prohibit schools from disclosing personally identifiable information they
obtain through complying with Title IX, with limited exceptions, such as when they have prior
written consent or when the information is disclosed to the parent of a minor.

The unofficial version of the final regulations is available here. In addition, the Department has
released a summary of the major provisions of the final regulations and a resource for drafting
Title IX nondiscrimination policies, notices of nondiscrimination, and grievance procedures. The
final regulations are effective on August 1, 2024, and apply to complaints of sex discrimination
regarding alleged conduct that occurs on or after that date. The Department is committed to
supporting schools in implementing the final regulations and will provide technical assistance
and additional resources to schools to support implementation and compliance, as appropriate.




Human Resources Department

: - 5 Dr. Korie Wilson-Crawford, Assistant Superintendent
_ Quality Community —Quality Schools 350 N. Main Street - Rockford, M 49341
- Together Building a Tradition of Excellence Phone: 616.863.6554 - Fax: 616.863.6355

Qﬁ ockford Public Schools
\ /

Memorandum
To: Board of Education
From: Dr. Korie Wilson-Crawford, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources

Date: July 15, 2024
Subject: Certified Staff Recommendations

Jamma Kelly Psychologist Special Services
Riley Legge Counselor Freshman Center
Jennette Allen Teacher East Middle School

www.rockfordschools.org



Rockford Public Schools Finance Department

Allison Clements, Executive Director
of Business and Operations

350 N. Main Street (*) Rockford, MI 49341

Quality Community — Quality Schools
Together Building a Tradition of Excellence

Phone: 616.863.6555 (¥) Fax: 616.866.1911

Memorandum

To: Dr. Steve Matthews, Superintendent of Schools

From: Allison Clements, Executive Director of Business and Operations
Date: July 9, 2024

Subject: Summer Tax Resolution

Attached is a resolution approving our annual summer tax collection. The Board has approved a summer
tax resolution annually since 1983. To continue the collection of summer taxes, this resolution needs to
be enacted prior to January 1, 2025. The resolution allows us to:

e Collect one-half our school- appropriated taxes in the summer.
e Notify our local taxing units regarding the summer tax collection.
e Develop a collection agreement with governmental agencies.

| recommend the resolution be presented to the full Board for approval at the July 15, 2024 Board of
Education meeting.

ATC/jg

Attachment

www.rockfordschools.org



Annual Summer Tax Resolution

A regular meeting of the board of education of the District (the “Board”) was held:
in the Administration Building, within the boundaries of the District,

U electronically through with identification number

on the 15th day of July, 2024, at 5:30 o’clock in the p.m. (the “Meeting”)
The meeting was called to order by Jarrod Folsom, President.

Present; Members

Absent: Members
The following preamble and resolution were offered by Member and supported by Member
WHEREAS, this Board previously adopted a resolution to impose a summer tax levy to

collect 50% of annual school property taxes, including debt service, upon property located within
the District and continuing from year-to-year until specifically revoked by the Board.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

Z¢
ml
-
T:
| ol

1. The Board, pursuant to 1976 PA 451, as amended (the Revised School Code),
invokes for 2024 its previously adopted ongoing resolution imposing a summer tax levy of one-
half of annual school property taxes, including debt service, upon property located within the
District and continuing from year-to-year until specifically revoked by the Board and requests that
each city and/or township in which the District is located collect those summer taxes.

2, The Superintendent or designee is authorized and directed to forward to the
governing body of each city and/or township in which the District is located a copy of this Board’s
resolution imposing a summer property tax levy on an ongoing basis and a copy of this resolution
requesting that each such city and/or township agree to collect the summer tax levy for 2024 in the
amount specified in this resolution. Such forwarding of the resolutions and the request to collect
the summer tax levy shall be performed so that they are received by the appropriate governing
bodies before January 1, 2024,

3. Pursuant to and in accordance with Section 1613(1) of the Revised School Code,
the Superintendent or designee is authorized and directed to negotiate on behalf of the District with
the governing body of each city and/or township in which the District is located for the reasonable
expenses for collection of the District’s summer tax levy that the city and/or township may bill
under MCL 380.1611 or MCL 380.1612. Any such proposed agreement shall be brought before
this Board for its approval or disapproval.




4, All resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with the provisions
of this resolution be and the same are hereby rescinded.

Ayes: Members

Nays: Members

Resolution declared adopted.

Secretary, Board of Education

The undersigned duly qualified and acting Secretary of the Board of Education of
, hereby certifies that the foregoing
constitutes a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the Board at the Meeting, the
original of which is part of the Board’s minutes. The undersigned further certifies that notice of
the Meeting was given to the public pursuant to the provisions of the “Open Meetings Act” (Act
267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, as amended).

Secretary, Board of Education

Z
)
14
X
-

B Law Firm, £, C.






